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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

1 BS M
2020
—g-%F
HK$’000
BT T
Revenue Wz 35,348 31,023 14%
Loss attributable wE AELESE
to the owners (24,063) (21,234) 13%
Basic loss per share FREREE
(HK cents) (AL (7.38) (6.63) 11%
Diluted loss per share SR EEE
(HK cents) (FB0) (7.38) (6.63) 11%
Total equity B R 322,012 349,370 -8%
Net assets value per share SREEFE
(HK dollars) (M) 0.99 1.07 7%
REVENUE
I % LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE BASIC LOSS
(Re-presented) NS OWN ERS PRLLS HARE
(i E5)) A A 1R B REA
(HK$’000) (HK$’000) (HK cents)
(BT IT) (BT IT) (B
40,000 20,000 6
35,348
31,023 15,000 4
30,000 10,000 5
26,350
5,000 (4.16) (6.63) (7.38)
(12,873) (21,234  (24,063) 0
20,000
2
-5,000
10,000 410,000 4
-15,000 6
0 -20,000 -8

2018 2019 2020 2018 2019 2020 2018 2019 2020
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HRCEE S

A summary of the results, and the assets and liabilities of the Group T AREBEABE A BT KNEE 2 %45 -
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published ZBELABEMHME  H IHEEAC TR ZEEX
audited financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not  BFf 5% - A BN N ER KL BTk
form part of the audited financial statements. Z— 85 .

Results EF

2020
“ECEF

HK$’000
BT

(25,738)

3 Included continuing operations and discontinued operation * BEBECLERRBRIEELER

Assets and Liabilities EERAE

2020
—ECEF

HK$’000
BT

572,208
(250,286)

322,012

5)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B G b o

OPERATION REVIEW

General Performance

2020 was a year of grim for many economies across the globe
due to the devastating effects of COVID-19 resulting in a recession
in majority of nations and in others a depression. International
Monetary Fund estimated a 3.5% global economic contraction in
2020, the worst in decades except China which impressively still
recorded a 2.3% GDP growth in the epidemic. In Hong Kong and
Macau where the Group operates, both governments faced difficult
trade-off between containing the spread of the COVID-19 and
keeping its economy afloat. Notwithstanding the release from the
governments various stimulus/relief packages to support businesses
and individuals, GDP in Hong Kong and Macau contracted by 6.1%
and 56.3% respectively. We have seen businesses large and small
suffered with many requiring financial lifelines to survive. Looking back
when COVID-19 was gaining momentum worldwide, the Group’s
various businesses like many others had been adversely affected and
new business initiatives were put on hold.

During the year under review, the Group’s net loss increased by 18%
to approximately HK$25,738,000 after netting the effects for (i) the
absence in 2020 fair value gain on investment properties and gain on
disposal of an investment property in aggregate at HK$10,800,000
in 2019; (ii) unrealised RMB exchange gain of HK$5,547,000 in
the year under review instead of unrealised RMB exchange loss of
HK$4,375,000 in 2019; (iii) government pandemic subsidies received
during the year under review amounted to HK$2,167,000 and (iv)
adjustment of deferred tax assets resulting in increased income tax
expenses of HK$2,402,000 for the year under review.

48 <2 [o] B8R

EERR

T -ZF > COVID-19RIBEE 2T E
LR ERE BRI LBERBARR -
FEBRRBAEK BEREEESMHT =
E_TFERHREEERILS% 0 BETFU
REEMRER  BPEGDPREEHEMD
HARSRIS23% MR - TR AREBEBAT
ERNBEE R - M BT 5 5 R 5 i
COVID-19% (G ELRIF L2 Rl & M R B -
BEMBATH Y Z B4 RE kB
BAARAETR @ HEEB&KBRFIHGDP S B W 4E
6.1% 5 56.3% ° B R & KK/ /NAg1b %
BBERNE HPTNPFERTFHES - OFE
COVID- 19K 1BEHB 2 - AEBSIEEK R
HMh¥ER REIIEETE  #el%E
BEEINFGE -

REBEFR  AEBZABEMI8%ELNE
#05,738,0007T * IR THEOHRZZ— NI
FREWEZATERSERHE —BIREY
¥ 2 A HAE10,800,000 T E - E-F
FWENIR  (RREBEFEZAEEAREE
Rz BB S 547,000 MR —_ZE—h&F
ZAREI|AREE N EEAAE14,375,000
A (1) D RCIN =R - e ol
2,167,0007C : R(vV)FABEEHRIEEEZER
REEFE 2 TSR F I8N # 2,402,000
et
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The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 14% from
HK$31,023,000 in 2019 to approximately HK$35,348,000 in 2020
as the business segments of hospitality services and property
project management commencing businesses in December 2019
came in their full year operation. As the profit margin of hospitality
business and property project management business is by industry
reference lower than our other business segments, kicking off these
two business segments in 2020 reduced our gross profit by 33%
to HK$12,256,000. In addition, the accounting treatment for better
financial presentation of direct cost of businesses to the effect that
the depreciation of leased properties held for the Group’s hair styling
services and hospitality service business as well as staff cost of
hospitality business were reclassified from administrative expenses
to cost of revenue further reduced gross profit ratio. Other income
increased by 118% to HK$11,426,000 after compensating the
decrease in bank interest income of HK$1,215,000 from the relatively
lower interest rate in year under review with the received government
pandemic subsidies of HK$2,167,000 and accrued unrealised
exchange gain on RMB deposits at HK$5,547,000. The administrative
expenses were substantially decreased by 20% to HK$28,898,000
mainly due to the absence of non-recurring one off expenditure
incurred in 2019 for (i) cost related to relocating our flagship hair
salon; (i) legal and professional estate agency fee for disposing and
entering into new tenancies of our investment properties; (iii) the
unrealised exchange loss on RMB bank deposits which turnaround to
exchange gain in 2020; and (iv) bank charges for switching banking
facilities between banks. At the same time the Group reviewed all the
overheads in an attempt to control administrative cost and amongst
the various endeavours taken included continuing freezing all payroll
and discretionary year-end bonus of staff and management alike to
keep the Group’s sustainability in the adverse economy.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net asset value was
approximately HK$322,012,000 and net asset value per share
was approximately HK$0.99. The Group’s total assets and total
liabilities were approximately HK$572,298,000 and HK$250,286,000
respectively.

HRAEBEE-—ZT—hLF+-_AHENIKE
ERERBARMEEEEENEL D IE
EE—EAZEFE  AEEKREH-ZT N
$z,%¢%‘31 023,000 T MA14% E = F
TEH B H35,348,0007T © IRITELRZE
73&}3& NERIEUAR D EBEEEER 25
HERBEMEMEBDBHAK  RZT=
TFEFARZMIEBER D BERMHEF T
33% EE#12,256,0007C ° 4N - B EE
BHERANMEE2HRMETHNSTRIE -
A S B R AR RS A KRS B XAk
BEBEAEHEVMENEARIKE RREFE
BEIKNARTHRASEFSEERERA
AR EFIEREAMME— P T o B AL
IN118% = 7 11,426,000 7T © H i B 0E
B R R AE Y B R A RIT R B AR D
5%%%%121500073 %FE&UF;E%WEM%%&

Llﬁzﬁﬁ,%ﬁ% 547, 0007z o ﬁﬂzﬁaﬂfzﬂéﬁw
20% & /& # 28,898,000 7T ° EKEEEAIEF
HE T NFHE AT IEEEME— NS H ()
HFEEE AR M RBEEAKA (ii)ﬁ%?ﬁ;ﬁ
MERLIEEMENTBOZ FEREE
EHERESE  (IER_Z_ZFEAEN
Wz AEBRAREETERELEE &
(iv) A SR 1 zﬁaﬁﬁz—‘-’ﬁ@ﬁﬁmﬂém& TER - [
B ANEBEEEMMEZEERIEH TR
Y TEBEREH  BEEERERES

MERBZRATERBIBFERIEL AR
EORETNRIEAEBRAFEN -
R-_ZE_EF+_A=+—8H  AKEzE

EREY AB 322 012,000 © MERE
EFENEEK0.99T - AEBZREER
@A En R 45 ES72,208,000 7T K &
250,286,0007T °
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Property Investments Business

During the year under review, total rental income contributed
from Hong Kong and Macau investment properties amounted to
HK$4,257,000, decreased by approximately 53% compared to the
year before. Rental income from Hong Kong investment properties
dropped substantially as the boutique hotel used to be the major
contributor in the segment generating rental income of HK$4,700,000
in 2019, was turned to self use when we took up the operation in
December 2019. Return from leasing the investment properties was
about 4.8% comparing the gross rental income and original cost of
investments. The reduction in rental income as a whole coupling with
the absence of valuation gain on the investment properties resulted in
segment loss of HK$4,161,000 for the year under review compared to
a profit of HK$1,948,000 the year before.

There is no acquisition or disposal of investment properties during the
year under review. Total valuation of the investment properties remain
the same as 2019 at HK$130,100,000 despite some variances on
individual properties.

In Hong Kong total rental income derived from the Group’s investment
properties portfolio comprised of a retail shop in Sheung Wan and
residential units in Taikoo Shing decreased approximately 18% to
HK$1,313,000 with investment yield being approximately 4.7%. The
decreased rental income was mainly due to cessation of income
in 2020 from a residential investment property after disposal was
completed in second quarter of 2019 plus vacancy of another
residential property for five months in the latter half of 2020 before a
new tenancy commenced early this year.

Rental income from Macau properties increased approximately 5% to
HK$2,944,000. Despite rental concessions granted to tenants during
the year due to pandemic and the vacancy of our residential unit in
the last quarter of the year as the tenancy expired, rental income
from Macau properties increased due to (i) full occupancy in 2020
versus nine months’ occupancy of the retail shop which was vacant
in the first quarter of 2019 and (ii) higher rental rate commanded from
renewed lease of our office investment properties commencing in
the second half of 2019. An average yield of about 4.8% comparing
the gross rental income and original cost of investments on Macau
properties was recorded.

J& &t ww K& o> M

MEREER

REBFAR  BERBMEENEZHASK
AMEE BB 257,0007T © B F—FE L
B #753% o EEBA#%DD/EE“%WUBZI
BEERE  WH= hi?iﬁiWA
7 #4.700,0007T ° Eﬁﬁ e S e
PEFELE%BEAERH - &XE%%&Q
MEZHSWAKRIE TR - EHHESKAL
HHEFRRERNAETHER  HHEKREDED
C3REL) B4.8% - BREMSIWMABFT T
MEREMEVEHBERE  SHNEEEF
B2 EBEi8 5B 4,161,0000T © M E—4
€ Bl &% A7 1,948,0007T °

REBEFRATERNBKEEREYE - BE
M%mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ WEMEZ BIEEHS
— NLERB130,100,0007THE[F) o

/\—7

BEETE REAEBEHRMARERH—EZ
EESUARMNRATROEEEMARK 2
BEWMEBAZHASBARBRERLDH18%ES
#1,313,0007T * MIKEREELN HB4.7% - 1
SWARDHEERREZZE—NFE_F
ERRHEER  —HEEEREWER N
S_TFEARA NME-ZT_ZTFTEF
B EAEEWEEEERBRETRSEL
FIEGFTFA -

R ERS WAL SN BB
2,944,000 - BEENFREZIBREEE
THEER  FAXRE —FEHRMEEEAML
MOEmmHEEEER  HRMYENTE
SWADEZN AR EEEFER =
—EEXHEY  M-E-ALFELANEA
i 5EEEZEBR  MRZE—IF
Tiiﬁ%ﬁﬁ%“*&é%%miﬁmﬁ
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The property market sentiment in both Hong Kong and Macau is weak
following the social protests in Hong Kong in the latter half 2019 and
the combined impact of the ongoing US-China trade tension and
the coronavirus outbreak which hits hard on the tourism/hospitality
and retail sectors in which our tenants operate. However we believe
the relevant sectors will likely rebound this year given last year’s low
base as the pandemic is better contained with the roll out of mass
vaccine program, the eventual border reopening and the gradual
relaxation in social distancing. The continued low interest environment
as a result of global monetary easing policies adopted by major
countries should help the property market to remain steady. It is no
surprise that COVID-19 with its lingering unpredictable and sporadic
outbreaks will continue to impact our economy in 2021 leading to
uncertain business outlook and standing high unemployment rate and
as such, upcoming lease renewal, occupancy and rental rate for our
investment properties will inevitably come under pressure.

Hair Styling Business

Due to the negative impact of the pandemic on the business
environment during the year, turnover of this segment amounted to
HK$15,236,000 representing an decrease of 16% as compared with
2019. Segment net loss in 2020 was HK$22,000 compared to net
loss of HK$964,000 the year before. Decrease in segment loss was
attributable to the combined effect of (i) the absence in 2020 of the
one-off expenditure for relocating the salon to the new location and
the reinstatement cost of yielding up the old salon to the landlord in
2019; and (i) the rental concession savings and government subsidies
received due to the pandemic in the year under review.

Retail products sales is a major focus in enhancing our income base
after relocation of salon. Retail products sales increased 80% to
HK$834,000 compared to the year before. More new brands and co-
operation with luxury hair and beauty brands were introduced during
the year 2020 and we will continue to put in resources in further
expanding our product sales in both retail and wholesale dimentions.
Meanwhile the Group strictly follows government guidelines and
implemented preventive measures to safeguard the well being of our
customers and employees. To recalibrate our operations for ensuring
long-term sustainability, strenuous effort is made to improve our
service quality and as always strengthen operation with stringent
measures to control costs and maintain liquidity while new marketing
strategies are deployed to enhance business performance.

BEER_ZE-—NFTEFRELSEH 2
% BAEMEFNMEDSBEEEX - B
PR EESHRABRIFIEERURZIEE
% BREITERMAAPKELNRE,FRER
TEEXE AN BEREAHEEZE &5
et EREREMURERERES
WE - &MAERE - HETERFHRE AR
EFHNAEEA - TEEREMANZIRE K
ERBRFERERERE  EEYREWE
MBBTE - 2 TEINCOVID- 19 IEBEBREZ R
AEAMEENEEDNEFERM S =—
FHRE  HEBINSTRTAPRERE
XERGE  RUABERMEEDELRR
MBHER - DHEEMBALKFEEKED -

BRDTER
HREBERFAHEEBRREERKABEE
A 5> BB & 2R A S 515,236,000 70 0 B
ZE-NERII6% c _BE_BEHP 4L
BABIE220005T ' ME—F2EBAEBE
964,0007C ° D EEB O IERARH =T =
SFEVESKES T NFREANRRBEH
BN —RESTHEUARNBEERNEREE
FHE R ¢ K (i) B B 4 FE s R 15 P Uk ER
ZHERERBSHE 2 mE T E o

RBEANRER  TEERHEEARESEM
MIKAEROES TEERHEERAFIE
K80%EHE#834,000T c RZE_FTFWK -
SIATEZH MBEWEEEZEZR RERME
A1E MERMBEBRANERINESER
HEMTEE—PERBEMNEREES - A
B AEEBRKETRITES - HEHBEE
M NRERMEFPREEMNREE - BEMN
FAERPNEBREE  BREERNAIFESR
B BRMEBTHBES HNRS R MRS
£ WA AARENTE BN EE
NEHIK AR ERFRBES  AINTBHN
BIHRBE ADR Z ¥4 -
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Hospitality Service Business

Turnover of the segment was reported at HK$8,976,000 with
segment loss of HK$1,869,000. The segment commenced business
in late December 2019 when we took over the operation of the
boutique hotel. During the year under review, the Group entered into
leasing a hostel premises in North Point with 99 rooms in May 2020
to increase the number of rooms in operation and effectively gaining
benefit from achieving better economies of scale. The North Point
hostel is situated in the traditional community hub and proximate to
the well-developed island east commercial area with steady demand
in hospitality service from the locals.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 which brought travel to a standstill,
devastating the tourism/hospitality industry with lockdowns and
travel restrictions imposed across countries, results of the business
segment in 2020 is far below our target performance. To survive
the hardship and lift up the occupancy rate, the Group adopted
the most flexible pricing strategy and shifted its focus to target the
neighbouring and local community by offering staycation packages
and flash sales. With an objective to building up a recurring income in
the short term, the Group renovated and modified part of our facilities
during the year to accommodate the needs of co-living tenants. The
co-living business which targets at the local demand has brought
forth positive market responses and value added to our operations.
We always believe agility and innovation will help to survive in crisis
and management will consider the feasibility to capture on the
opportunities present from the emerging trend of co-working space
concept with a rising market demand for “Work From Hotel” in echo
to the “Work From Home” which has become a norm during the
pandemic.

WRERRFREER
BRDEE5 2 5B %8,976,0007T © M5
RS 18 Bl A&7 #1,869,0007T © A5 3B K F 1M
E-E—NEF+_ATOEERRAEZE
BERRAREE REBEFE  AEER=-ZE
“EFRAFTHHEMRIt AT EEIRE
EMIREME  NENMEENEFEEHE - I
BEREENRELEIGET B ER -
ItARERNESRLEP L - BMAERT
EMNEERTER  HREMREREER
TERAH TS o

BN COVID-19MRBEFEIRTTER - EHE
1o 88 IR % IR 5 PR 6 S A R iR AT 2
AUEEHZEBIBR T _TFHNREER
EEREMNBERERR - RERMRRHE
FIEREAER  AREEROSELINE
BERE TBARHEBERLARKEER
HEMHEMEBIMOIR AN b E - BERE
HARMEEERA - XEBERF AR
REBMORE\ERE - wmE B EENE
FP2z@RmEK - HHAMBROKRAEERE R
BHNEHEREEN TS RENEE - &
PIsRBESRRERAIFEERNERET &
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Despite the unprecedented challenges we faced with the rampant
pandemic, we believe in the long-term prospect of the tourist industry
in Hong Kong. Hong Kong tourism industry has its advantages
and competitiveness where it could leverage on the completion of
the cross-border infrastructure (the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Express Rail Link and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge)
to attract more Mainland visitors; the undergoing construction of
the third runway of Hong Kong International Airport to expand its
operation capacity as well as geographical coverage; the developing
West Kowloon Cultural District to enhance the cultural elements of
Hong Kong tourism and working closely with the Greater Bay Area
to attract new and returned tourists for multi-destination travel.
Hospitality business will be one of the key directions in our future
business development and in particular, provision of accommodation
in Hong Kong as well as Macau which today has developed into an
international tourism resort city famous for the blend of Portugese
and Chinese culture. Through leveraging the management experience
the Group has attained from previous hotel investment projects, we
set path to become a promising operator in the modern hostel and
guesthouse segment in Hong Kong, Macau and neighbouring cities.
Projects explored and identified previously to add to our hospitality
service operation portfolio were put on hold due to the uncertainties
and downside risks of the pandemic but the management will closely
monitor the market development as well as government policies and
measures to catch the right timing to execute our expansion plan.

EERMERBHEERAARAENKE B
BMBEEARERNRENSR - HEIKE
XEHEZNBEFN  UEPBRERR
ME(ERESERHERAERRKE) I - A
Wl EZAMER THEEZEFNETER
BEEE=GEE  MBRELERE Nt
BEZHE  BRTOHONENXEE - AR
FHERBRENXETE  YEXKERERS
15 ARSI#iEE ROGRELETS B it
HRIT o BRIE R EB B R PIARKES
BRNEBHIRAZ—  LEHEEEBKRM
REERE - M5 RACERK A —ENRE
&) 7T o rp B SO L T R i 7 2 O B R i e TR AR
W e BENMAARE R BENEERER
BEFAESHNERERR BRMAESTE - R
FIRAGI B EIRAIRE RBEED R ASH
AISMEERBEEER ARRENTEE
HERTTRE  EMCRRMRCEEHER
BPAIIRE MR FRGELES AR RKE
T HEEEEREINEREDSERARRA
B RER - WIUEEE SR ERTRMAN
fEORATE ©
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Securities Investments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$69,946,000 (31 December
2019: HK$88,836,000). The securities investments portfolio
comprised of Hong Kong blue chips and REITs with adequate
yield on dividend income and liquidity in secondary market. The
Group recorded unrealised loss of HK$11,958,000 on the securities
investments held. Dividend income from securities investments
amounted to HK$2,969,000 was recorded in the reviewing year.

Against the backdrop of the global pandemic, escalating geopolitical
tensions and economic fragility in 2020, the Hong Kong financial
market was robust marked by record high trading volumes and
the best year since 2010 in terms of IPO fund raising amount with
new economy companies. In fact, Hong Kong is now the Asia’s
most thriving financial ecosystem for technology and new economy
companies. However, share prices of traditional company whose
business being adversely impacted to varying degrees by the
pandemic plummeted from pre COVID-19 are under-performing.
We anticipate that when the business environment in Hong Kong is
restored and the present epidemic comes under control, prices of the
securities investments will gradually reflect its intrinsic value.
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The Group’s significant investments (i.e. investment with carrying
amount exceeding 5% of the total assets of the Group) held as at 31
December 2020 are as follows:

Approximate
percentage
held to

the total
issued share
capital of the
company/

investment Investment
No.of  Fislk{ib&  cost/cost of

AEBR _Z_BFE+_A=+—HFHALZ
EARE(NEEEBEAREEERES
ZERE)WMT

Approximate

percentage

Dividend of total
income Fair value assets of the

for the loss for the Fair Group at

year ended year ended valueat 31 December
31 December 31 December 31 December 2020
2020 2020 2020 fEi

Bz Sk i b S 23
—g-2f bt 2 “2-2f +{ZR=1-H

sharesheld  27/REE acquision +=A=t-A t=A=t-B t=A=t-A pig- |

fi%  BOEAEE  REAA/
BORE  ZEAEAE MWK
' HK$000

AMTR

Link Real Estate Investment Trust (823) 704,583 0.034% 66,549
EREHERAGTER(8))

LFEZ LEEY t¥Ee  BE#EZ
REKA  AVEER AYE  BRESM
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 '
AT BRI

2,077 (7,996) 49,744 8.7%

Note 1: Link Real Estate Investment Trust is a Hong Kong-based real estate investment
trust (REIT). The investment objectives of REIT are to deliver sustainable growth
and to create long-term value for its unitholders. It invests in a portfolio of
properties, including retail facilities, markets, car parks and offices in Hong
Kong, tier one cities in Mainland China, London and Sydney. Its investment
properties include destination shopping centers in Hong Kong, community
shopping centers in Hong Kong, office and shopping malls in Beijing, Shanghai,
Guangzhou, Shenzhen, among others.

Note 2: During the year 2020, it recorded a loss on disposal amounted to HK$974,000.

Note 3: The Group will hold the investment for dividend income and to reduce the
investment when the unit price increases to a reasonable level.
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Property Project Management Business

The Group commenced its business of property project management
at the end of 2019. From its property investments business, the
Group has gained vast experience in increasing values of different
types of property by ways of altering layout, reengineering technical
input and output as well as change of use of the properties. We offer
customers with a turnkey model solution and acting as representative
of the property owner to source, liaise and coordinate with architect/
designer as well as main contractor for better project management.
During the year the Group completed projects focusing in residential
properties generating HK$3,908,000 total revenue with segment
profit of HK$84,000. As the economy revives, we strive to expand the
scale of the business segment by collaborating with local renowned
architect/interior designer to explore into new projects.

Other Business Segments

Money lending business recorded one personal loan with total
revenue of HK$2,000 and segment loss of HK$19,000 for the year
under review.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and bank
balances including pledged bank deposits of HK$118,794,000
in aggregate and net current liabilities of HK$28,256,000.
The current ratio (calculated as the current assets to the
current liabilities) of the Group as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately 0.87 times (31 December 2019: 0.97 times).

The sales and purchase of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. The Group has substantial amount of
Renminbi deposits on hand and the exchange rate of which are
becoming volatile. The Directors consider that the Group may
expose to fluctuations on Renminbi exchange rates.

During the year, the Group’s investment properties, property,
plant and equipment and certain bank deposits were pledged
to two banks to secure the bank borrowings of approximately
HK$204,371,000, which is denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and bearing interest at floating rate. The Group did not have
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: Nil) and there is no capital commitments as at
31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: Nil).
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Capital Structure of the Group

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total equity of
HK$322,012,000, fixed rate liability of HK$18,738,000, floating
rate liability of HK$204,371,000 and interest-free liabilities of
HK$27,177,000, representing 6%, 64% and 8% of the Group’s
total equity respectively. The gearing ratio (calculated as the
total long-term loan to the total shareholders’ equity) of the
Group as at 31 December 2020 was approximately 5.7% (31
December 2019: 3.4%).

Significant Investments, material Acquisition and
Disposal

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had not
made any significant investments or material acquisition or
disposal.

Employment Information

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed approximately
a total of 47 employees (2019: 37), an increase due to
launching of the new hospitality business. The Group’s
emoluments policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employee and are competitive in the market.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, total staff costs
(excluding Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
HK$11,396,000 (2019: HK$9,871,000).

Final Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COVID-19 will continue to impact the major global economies in
2021 but Aisa is expected to lead in global economic recovery post
COVID-19. China could be amongst the first country in the world to
recover its economy and as unveiled by the latest economic data,
recovery will be fast notwithstanding that in the near term US-China
trade relations remain strained under the Biden administration which
seems to retain a tough stance with China similar to Trump. China will
continue to rebalance its economy and push out structural reforms
including the “dual circulation strategy” which refers to a parallel
emphasis on “internal” and “international” circulation. China’s steady
economic growth and the Greater Bay Area initiatives to promote
coordinated regional economic development will have a ripple effect
on our economy and give new impetus to the Group’s business
development in the region.

For over a year since the coronavirus outbreak, the roll out of vaccines
across the globe is considered by many as game changer in the battle
against the virus and brings light and hope to the tourism/hospitality
and retail sectors that have been so severely battered. The Group
had to put on hold projects which the Group explored and identified
to add to our hospitality service operation portfolio after weighing on
the pros and cons. The reopening of borders and return to travel will
ultimately depend on the success of mass vaccinations not only in
our home base but in Europe, US and to some degree China which
is a key source market for many destinations across Asia Pacific
not to mention Hong Kong where we operate our hostels. We are
confident travel will return which is not a matter of if but rather when.
The inherent wanderlust in human nature, relatively cheap cost of
travel and pent-up demand all add up to support the expectation of a
V-shaped recovery for the tourism/hospitality sector in the near term
with due caution as borders re-open and the mechanism to facilitate
mass travel is formalized between governments like administering
digital health pass/vaccination travel ID.
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It is everybody’s wishful thinking that the vaccination campaigns
being rolled out globally, the pandemic will eventually be brought
under control. We envisage the world would be somewhat different
after COVID-19. Many trends are already underway globally like
the acceleration of digital economy due to the pandemic and
certain structural changes such as remote working and learning,
telemedicine, virtual meetings etc are more widely adopted and
embraced. Digital capabilities will certainly become an increasingly
important factor for majority businesses to respond to changing
customers’ needs and maintain a competitive edge for sustainable
growth. Looking ahead, the global economy is generally expected
to recover from the second half of 2021 onwards but not without
the volatilities from the uncertainty associated with coronavirus or
new variants of coronavirus status quo, evolving China/US relations,
escalating geopolitical tensions, profound changes in the international
landscape. With a pragmatic mindset backed by expertise and
experience in our business, the Group will make timely adjustments
or reforms including application of digital technologies to improve
operational efficiency and achieve further growth at the time when
people’s daily lives somewhat return to normal and our economy
recovers from the epidemic.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group always strives for being a responsible member of the
communities in the territories it operates, Hong Kong and Macau.
As such, each year the management would set targets to achieve
goals of community care and environment protection by actively
participating in various social services. In the future the Group shall
continue to seek innovative and meaningful ways to engage its
employees and associates in building stronger and more vibrant
communities.
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During the year 2020, the Group was honoured with the following
awards:

- “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Services for 13 years in succession

- “Good MPF Employer” by Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority for 6 years in succession

= “Manpower Developer” by the Employee Retraining Board
in “Manpower Developer Award Scheme” for 3 consecutive
sessions

- “Social Capital Builder” award by the Hong Kong Productivity
Council for 3 continuous sessions

- “Hong Kong Green Organization” accredited by Environmental
Campaign Committee since January 2018

- accredited as "Happy Company” (organized by Hong Kong
Promoting Happiness Index Foundation) in May 2020 and have
committed to develop corporate caring, wisdom, toughness
and motivation so as to provide a happy workplace for staff

The Group is always firmly committed to operating as a socially-
responsible company across all of its business operations and a more
detailed Corporate Social Responsibility Report of our activities during
the year will be posted in our company’s website later.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were additional business
segment on property project management to the Group’s principal
activities during the year. The analysis of the principal activities and
geographical locations of the operations are set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 63 to 182.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position are provided in
management discussion and analysis from pages 6 to 19 of this
annual report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company can be found throughout this Annual Report.
Particulars of important events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year 2020, if any, can also be
found in the abovementioned sections and the Notes to the Financial
Statements. The outlook of the Company’s business is discussed
throughout this Annual Report including in management discussion
and analysis from pages 6 to 19 of this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the
Company.
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R A O NEWEEEEE N P R B EAC SN EE RS
AND SUPPLIERS

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors like the business
performance of the Company and the annual inflation rate in Hong
Kong. Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits
including mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and
performance related bonus.

Customer relationship plays a very important role in the operation of
the company. The Company fully understands this principal and thus
maintains close relationship with the customers with a watchful eye
for service improvement to fulfill their immediate and long-term need.

Due to the nature of the business, the Company didn’t have any major
supplier that has significant influence on the operations. However, the
Company had always maintained fair and co-operating relationship
with the suppliers.

SO EAZREES PN EREET FESZANED=S FRVEREFS
AND ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We pursue
this business approach by managing our business prudently and
executing management decisions with due care and attention.

The Group is also committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner. Recycling use of eco-friendly stationery, plus
strenuous efforts to save paper and energy in office, resulted in more
efficient use of resources, as well as reduction of waste.

The Group remains firmly committed to operating as a socially-
responsible company across all of its business operations and
disclosing Corporate Social Responsibility Report during the year.

WA (RED)ARAF - —F - FFFER

DIRECTORS' REPORT * # & & #t

HER FRPRHER A
FMHR—RBERTTBRARBALE
BT - HERIE-RESFRERRTMH
REMEBRERT - MAADEBRAR
ERSFRRE - RFESIH  ARFARAH
LB TR BERES  BERBRER
R TEAT o

EFBAENEBRZRA  ARAIABWER
A  HEREPRFEEIER  YEHER
REEREARECEET AR ZFE -

EREBZUE  ARARTETMHEZE
BEAREZZEHER  HAQR—HH
HERERITFREEZRE -

A AT BB M BR B UK

AEBEHNEREEGMAELR 2 RER]
SERR - RMAFELERK  BEHIH
MITEIRIREK - AHEBIILETGER o

AEBEEAFUNRRTATE - BRBAR
RXE - WE MK ETE RRMP R ERE
R AERE AR M AERASIRAIRE -

AEB-—BEREHBR NN AEESEXBFIREG
THHERE AIRRNFARBELEEER
EHE -

21



N
\®}

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2020

DIRECTORS’ REPORT * # & & #i 4

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There was no movement in the Company’s authorised share capital
and no share option was granted under the Company’s share option
scheme as approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting held on 30 May 2019 (“Scheme”) during the
year under review. Details of the Company’s share capital and details
of the Scheme are set out in notes 28 and 29 respectively to the
financial statements.

Summary of the Scheme

1k The purpose of the Scheme is to reward Participants (as
defined below) who have contributed to the Group and/or to
enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group
and any invested entity and/or to encourage Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as
a whole.

2. The Participants of the Scheme to whom Option(s) may
be granted by the Board shall include Directors (including
executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) and employees of the Group and any
advisors, consultants, professional or service providers of any
member of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

3. Total number of ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital
of the Company available for issue under the Scheme as at the
date of this annual report is 29,347,742 Shares. Percentage of
the issued share capital that it represents as at the date of this
annual report is 9%.

4. Maximum entitlement of each eligible Participant under the
Scheme must not to exceed 1% of the Shares in issue in any
12-month period unless approved by shareholders of the
Company.
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5. The Shares under an Option must be taken within 10 years
from the date on which the Option is offered or such shorter
period as the Board may determine.

6. There is no minimum period for which an Option must be held
before it can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

/2 Price payable on application or acceptance of the Option is

HK$1.00. The payments or calls must or may be made in 28
days after the offer date of an Option. There are no terms on
the period within which loans for the purposes of the payments
or calls must be repaid.

8. The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and
notified to each grantee and shall not be less than the highest
of: (a) the closing price of a Share as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the relevant Option, which must be a
business day; (b) an amount equivalent to the average closing
price of a Share as stated in The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;
and (c) the nominal value of a Share.

9. The remaining life of the Scheme is 8 years (expiring on 29 May
2029).

Details of Share Options Granted

Details of the share options granted to the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any of its Associated Corporation”. There is no
movement on share options during the year 2020.
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The following table discloses the Company’s share options held by
each of the Directors, the substantial shareholders of the Company
and the employees of the Company granted under the Scheme during

the year 2020:

Name of participant Date of grant Validity period
(Note)

SRS REAH Lt
(M)

Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia 14 September 14 September 2016 to 13
Director and substantial 2016 September 2026
shareholder of the Company —F—H& 5 ENATERRE

LRt AATEA “EINENATER
BERARAEERF 19 September 2017 19 September 2017 to 18

Z5-tE September 2027
AATAR “E-tENATARE
ZECHEAATIR
3 October 2018 3 October 2018102
50 October 2028
+A=A Z5-\§+AZRZ
“ECMEHAZR
16 October 2019 16 October 2019 t0 15
E-E October 2029
At “E-NEHATARE
“ECNETATER
Total
alt

Exercise  Outstanding
price per  at1 January
Share HK$ 2020

it 32

SHRER i
fikR  HAGR

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,260,000

12,548,000

Note:  The closing prices per share immediately before 14 September 2016, 19
September 2017, 3 October 2018 and 16 October 2019 (the date on which the
share options were granted) were HK$0.73, HK$0.69, HK$0.395 and HK$0.25

respectively.

All outstanding share options were exercisable as at 31 December

2020.

TRBENR-_Z-_ZFEN AQRFHTE
FCARAETERERARREESERE
LETBIER 2 BERRAE

Number of share options

FREE

Outstanding

Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled at

duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  during the 31 December
year 2020 year 2020 year 2020 year 2020

R-B-%E
ER%H

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,260,000

12,548,000

MizE: BE_T-—AFAATEB - —ZT—+tEAATAH
B - \&+A=BR-_ZE—-hE+HA+XB
(BB EE B) AT e R E S Bl AE%0.73
7T~ B%0.697T « 5150.3957T B #0.257T °

EHEATEERER_S_ZTF+_A
=+—BafTE -



At 31 December 2020, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution as dividend amounted to HK$50,976,000
represented by the contributed surplus of HK$213,978,000 after
compensating the accumulated losses of HK$163,002,000. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act, the contributed surplus shall not be
distributed to the shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(if) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued capital
and share premium accounts.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out on page 67 and in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on pages 183
to 184.

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020
amounted to HK$204,371,000 (2019: HK$205,937,000). Particulars
of borrowings are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year is
HK$14,000 (2019: HK$23,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 5.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Senior Management as at the date of
this Report are set out on page 32 of the Annual Report.

The Group regards the executive directors and the heads of functional
departments as members of the senior management team.

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management
team were within the following bands:

S

‘}FJ,»JJ\
AEBEAFERLZESEREMBRARE
#514,0007C( ZF— N4 @ B %23,0007T) °

A B il
AEERBERAEVRFEEZEBEUAREE
REBEMESHNESA -

EHEMANE

RAFRELH  ERSREEASNEES
RARFHREI2H o

REBERNTEELBETMFAETELESRE
BEBKKE -

ENRENSREEABZHEHENT :

Number of individuals

A

2019
—T-NEF

Emolument bands & & E
Nil - HK$1,000,000 T E 1,000,000 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 751,000,001 702 4 #2,000,0007T =
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 712,000,001 728 %3,000,0007T -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 78 #£3,000,001 7T =% 4,000,0007T 2
HK$4,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 784,000,001 7T 2 & #5,000,0007T 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000 75,000,001 7T =74 #6,000,0007T =
HK$6,000,001 — HK$7,000,000 756,000,001 T2 #7,000,0007T =

HK$7,000,001 — HK$8,000,000 7B #£7,000,001 7T £ /5 #8,000,0007T




MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five major customers of the Group were attributable to the
property investments business. The five major suppliers of the Group
were attributable to hair styling. The percentages of the sales and
purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major customers
and suppliers are as follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 9%
— five largest customers combined 19%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 36%
— five largest suppliers combined 87%

At no time during the year, Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers or suppliers.

BRE=ENBFLVAE=RI:GAETES

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman)
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. HUI Yan Kit

Mr. LAU Pui Wing

Ms. HO Ting Mei (appointed on 1 January 2020)
Mr. AU Chi Wai (resigned on 1 January 2020)

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company which runs for an initial term of two years and
will be renewable for successive terms of one year until terminated
by either party by giving to the other not less than six months prior
written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term for one year
until terminated by either party by giving to the other not less than one
month prior written notice.
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BRSNS P TIN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONBRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or holding companies was a party
and in which a Director of the Company or an entity connected with a
Director is or was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXRECEEENCERLRIECECRS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF
ESFEERESTES

None of Directors, the substantial shareholders of the Company and
any of their respective close associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with
the Group during the year under review which are required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report, there was
no permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any
of the Directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise).
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Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, aged 47, brother of the Company’s
Executive Director, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, was appointed
as Executive Director and Executive Chairman in 1999 and 2004
respectively. He is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning,
business development and general management. Mr. Tsang is a
director of ST (79) Investment Limited (“ST (79) Investment”) and
Barsmark Investments Limited (“Barsmark”), substantial shareholders
of the Company, and a director of ST Investments Holding Limited,
the holding company of ST (79) Investment and Barsmark.

Prior to joining the Group, he had gained broad experience working
with international firms in building construction, hotel management,
financing and strategic investment.

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, aged 46, sister of the Company’s
Executive Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, was appointed as
Executive Director in 2010. She is now responsible for the sales and
leasing in the property investments business segment of the Group, in
particular the residential sector. Ms. Tsang is also a director of ST (79)
Investment and Barsmark, substantial shareholders of the Company
and a director of ST Investments Holding Limited, the holding
company of ST (79) Investment and Barsmark.

Ms. TSANG received her tertiary education in Canada and holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. Before joining the Group, Ms. Tsang
worked in a retail business responsible for its operation, sales and
marketing and had over 11 years experience in the field.

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, aged 63, joined the Group in 1999
and was appointed as Executive Director in 2001. Besides overseeing
the Group’s Finance and Human Resources & Corporate Affairs
departments, she is also responsible for all legal matters of the Group.

Ms. CHU received her tertiary education in Canada. Prior to joining
the Group, she had more than 12 years of experience working in the
financial field of various commercial enterprises both in Hong Kong
and Canada.
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 47, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in 2004. Before joining the Group, Mr. HUI had
more than 8 years experience in sales and marketing both in Hong
Kong and China. He is currently a general manager of an international
corporation engaged in plastic material manufacturing and trading.

Mr. LAU Pui Wing, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in 2017. He is a practicing certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and also an associate of the Hong
Kong Institution of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. He now runs a professional accountancy firm and has over 20
years of experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and corporate
finance.

Ms. HO Ting Mei, aged 46, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in 2020. She received her tertiary education
in United States and holds a Bachelor of Science Degree majoring
in marketing. Ms. HO has solid experience in both conventional
and digital marketing, business development, corporate relations
and digital media. Being an entrepreneur, her business covers
brand development as well as strategic and tactical marketing
with innovative concepts for corporates, products or services;
establishment of global distributing network and in addition, public
relation and corporate communication to source and build an
extensive network including government agencies and NGOs and
collaborate business opportunities across different industries on new
project or campaign development.
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Senior Management

Mr. KWOK Tsz Kit, aged 45, became a director of the Company’s
subsidiaries in December 2019 in operation of the Group’s newly
developed hospitality business. Mr. KWOK, founder of “HOMY”
budget hotel chain, is a pioneer in budget hotel segment of the
hospitality industry with comprehensive knowledge and market
sensitivity. He has been appointed by the HKSAR Home Affairs
Department to become a member of the Advisory Panel on Licensing
of Hotels and Guesthouses for 2020 to 2022 representing the hotels
and guesthouses industry. As a director of Hong Kong Association of
Hostels, Mr. Kwok is committed to foster the long term development
of the guesthouse industry and often stands up to voice out to the
respective authorities expressing collective views on government
policies relevant to the industry as well as its practitioners.

Mr. KWOK oversees the Group’s hospitality business operation and
development.

Ms. Sze Tak On, aged 51, was appointed as Financial Controller
and Company Secretary in 2004. Ms. Sze holds a Master degree in
Corporate Finance. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Sze has over 27 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and finance mostly working with
public companies listed in Hong Kong. Ms. Sze is responsible for
the financial and accounting matters of the Group as well as listing
compliance issues of the Company.

Ms. Wong Yim Tsui Amy, aged 59, joined the Group in 1999 and
was promoted Vice President of Human Resources & Corporate
Affairs in 2005. She is tertiary educated in The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and has been admitted member to Hong Kong Institute of
Human Resources Management since 1991. Ms. Wong has over 30
years’ human resources experience in various industries including
finance, retail and servicing and is responsible for the Group’s human
resources management to cope with corporate planning for business
development.

SREEBAE

R EE  BEN+RAR R-ZT—hFE
T AKABEARENBRAREE  BEE
BEENERERZIRERREER - BEA
(THOMY | & B AL RS B B3 A ) BIRIE &
RETENKERNBESSMEE  BE2
EAFHETIEREE - HESBFIITHRE
RBEEKRBREZT BRAEFA-_Z_ZF=
ZE - FBERIKEEREANEKE
REBERIKETE - EABEBIREHSE
B OSAEBORRBRHERETENRESR
B UREFTHASEE RS REHRT
ERHAEERENBITEENEESH -

BAEEEAKENKERRTRELER
BE -

BEBRzZLt  BFERE+ K R_ZTTWF
EZERMBRERARME - X LIHA
CEREBRTRM - WABTBGHMLEE
B RERBHFLRGHMAGEEXRER &
BRANEAGURRBEFFME RITERA
BERee8  -mxtaEgst  BFALMKS
HREB - TEFER YZHEBRNELE
EHNARAA - ERETEEAREERE
BtARARRB EMARTENETR -

BBzt BFERTAR R-AALF
MAXREBIR -_ZZRFAEADERRE
SESEHHAEY ERBFEEIANBE
RELHBEIR-—NNA—FKR/BEANE
RERHEEE - BEXTETRTERRY
BTE BRBTEREA=TFHENA
NERRR -KEEAEEANERERIA
RALEXRKERRENTE



B BV S E O e Y W D@0 o W B 250, @ 2 G B B A
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
R SR ES S RN RIS NG S EACREES=ANER)
BEBENEERES-CF=TF B O R AN SC REAINY:
OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of each
of the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii)
were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO; or (iii) have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules
were as follows:
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REQTRG REBERD 2 EE

(i) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the (i)
Company

Name of company Approximate

in which ordinary Number of percentage
shares/securities  Ordinary shares/ of total
Name of Director Nature of interests are held securities held shareholding
REREELER FrsgER, hEEREZ
BEEn ERtE BEZARER E5HAE BABDL
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel  Interest of controlled The Company 19,329,195 5.93%
LRREE corporation (Note 1 and 3)
XA EER VNG 19,329,195 5.93%
(PHEE1%3)
Interest of controlled The Company 88,275,577 27.07%
corporation (Note 2 and 3)
REHEEER A7) 88,275,577 27.07%
(KfsE2K3)
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia  Beneficial interests The Company 3,064,000 0.94%
BB LT EnkEn A/NC] 3,064,000 0.94%
Interest of controlled The Company 19,329,195 5.93%
corporation (Note 1 and 3)
REHEEER ARA] 19,329,195 5.93%
(Bf3E1 R3)
Interest of controlled The Company 88,275,577 27.07%
corporation (Note 2 and 3)
REHEEER AR 88,275,577 27.07%
(KfsE2k3)
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania Beneficial interests The Company 8,930,087 2.74%
KRAELL BEiiEn ARA] 8,930,087 2.74%
Notes: B -
i These shares were beneficially owned by Barsmark Investments 1. It F 1% 1 FABarsmark Investments Limited
Limited. EnER -
2. These shares were beneficially owned by ST (79) Investment Limited. 2. SR B ST (79) Investment Limited &

WA -



3. The issued share capital of Barsmark Investments Limited and ST
(79) Investment Limited are both wholly and beneficially owned by
ST Investments Holding Limited (“ST Investments”), the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned to one-third by each of Fortune
Ocean Limited (a company the entire issued capital of which is vested
in Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi as co-administrators of
the estate of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching), Conba Investments Limited (a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel)
and Ssky Investments Limited (a company wholly and beneficially
owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia). Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel
and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia are directors of Barsmark Investments
Limited, ST (79) Investment Limited and ST Investments. Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel is a director of Conba Investments Limited. Ms.
TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia is a director of Ssky Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and Chief Executive
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Division 7 & 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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(ii)

Name of Director/
Chief Executive
BEE FETHR
ABHEH

Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen
Sylvia
ELa e

Interests in the Share options of the Company

Date of grant of
share options

RBRERD

14 September
2016

ZE—RF
NA+IA

19 September
2017

—E—+F
NA+TAIA

3 October 2018

—T-N\F
e

16 October 2019

—E-hEF
+A+xH

(ii)

Exercise
price per
Exercisable period Share (HK$)
BRITEE
T (B¥)
14 September 2016 to 0.732
13 September 2026
ZE-R"EAARTHAZE 0.732
—E-XFNA+=H
19 September 2017 to 0.698
18 September 2027
“E—t+EAATHAEE 0.698
—E-t+HFAATNR
3 October 2018 to 0.395
2 October 2028
—E-N\E+H=HZE 0.395
T N\E+HZ=A
16 October 2019 to 0.25
15 October 2029
“E-NETHTREE 0.25

“E-hE+HATAR

Number

of options
outstanding
fef RATE
BREHE

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,260,000

3,260,000

RAEQTBRE 2 ER

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company
EARARREZ
BRABEDE

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

1.00%

1.00%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ iiZ”HLHL/‘/I\// 1 e A5 B B A
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN A 2 R SOR
SIHARESFQRATINPIF-RENRIN G S ELARES*QF = HE

COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section W-_Z_-_ZTF+_-_A=+—0  HBEZELHK
336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2020, the Company  HAE (&5 33615 MERE 2 T EREELM -
had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests FERA AR DEERFE AN 7 B BITIRAE%
and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued KA FZ FERFREZRAS ZBHANOT
share capital. These interests are in addition to those in respect of the W ERER TN ERB 2 EEZ LT ETHAS

Directors and Chief Executives as disclosed above. ZREFRLAINE o
Long position in shares R 2FE

Approximate

percentage

Number of of total

Name Nature of interests shares held shareholding

hHEEREZ

ne/ LB ERME Fris R BRABD

Barsmark Investments Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Interest 19,329,195 5.93%

Barsmark Investments Limited (Ff#1) BiEs 19,329,195 5.93%

ST (79) Investment Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Interest 88,275,577 27.07%

ST (79) Investment Limited (Fff3E1) BEagn 88,275,577 27.07%

ST Investments Holding Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 33%
corporation (Note 2)

ST Investments Holding Limited (Pi#3E1) X EE R 107,604,772 33%
(MtEE2)

Conba Investments Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 33%
corporation (Note 2)

BERERRRA (1) RIEHERER 107,604,772 33%
(Mt3E2)

Ssky Investments Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 33%
corporation (Note 2)

Ssky Investments Limited (Fff3E1) TS EEE S 107,604,772 33%
(fF3E2)

Fortune Ocean Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 33%
corporation (Note 2)

Fortune Ocean Limited (FizE1) REHEEER 107,604,772 33%

(HtsE2)
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Approximate

percentage

Number of of total

Name Nature of interests shares held shareholding

HEGEREZ

®E/EB EEME iESTE BOBDL

Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi (Note 3)  Beneficial Interest 784,125 0.24%

FRBLLRFBSLL (PHF3) BEimiEn 784,125 0.24%

Interest of controlled 107,604,772 33%

corporation (Note 2)
REthEBER 107,604,772 33%
(MtEE2)
Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited  Beneficial interest 50,996,250 15.64%
(Note 4)
Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited Bzt i st 50,996,250 15.64%
(PBifEE4)

Szeto Investments Holdings Limited (Note 4) Interest of controlled 50,996,250 15.64%
corporation

Szeto Investments Holdings Limited (Ff{z£4) TG EEE RS 50,996,250 15.64%

Szeto International Holdings Limited (Note 4) Interest of controlled 50,996,250 15.64%
corporation

Szeto International Holdings Limited (P34 ) REHEE 50,996,250 15.64%

Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin (Note 4) Interest of controlled 50,996,250 15.64%
corporation

AfEEER LT (MiaF4) REtEBES 50,996,250 15.64%

Notes:

1.

Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment Limited are both wholly
and beneficially owned by ST Investments Holding Limited, the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned as to one-third by each of (i) Conba
Investments Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel); (i) Fortune Ocean Limited (a company the entire issued
capital of which is vested in Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi as co-
administrators of the estate of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching); and (jii) Ssky Investments
Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen
Sylvia).

These shares represent the aggregate number of shares beneficially owned by
Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment Limited.

Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi are co-administrators of the estate
of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, whose beneficial interest and interest of controlled
corporation in shares of the Company are entirely vested in co-administrators.

Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited is wholly-owned by Szeto
Investments Holdings Limited, the issued share capital of which is wholly-
owned by Szeto International Holdings Limited. Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin is wholly
and beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of Szeto International
Holdings Limited.

s -

1.

2.

3.

Barsmark Investments Limited & ST (79)
Investment LimitedJ ST Investments Holding
Limited2 B E&=#A + MESETRADBIA()
BEKEARAT(—HEHEBRLEEEER
#A 22 7]) : (i) Fortune Ocean Limited ( — &
HTBRLTRABER T ASBBEEEEHR
REBANSNER AR @ HE2HEBTRA
BENABRBL T RFRZ X L) Kiii) Ssky
Investments Limited(—fEHEBHL L2 EEH
BEZRATNERBEAE=D2 -

Itk & B 17 5 Barsmark Investments Limited &2 ST
(79) Investment Limited & 2 # A 2 I {5 48 %8 o

ARBREIRFBZRLI R ERBELBEZH
FAEEA  MERARARNDF 2EREGZRT
ERZEEE2SRBRAREEA

Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement)
LimitedJ5#3Szeto Investments Holdings Limited
2E R - HB 17 A A Szeto International
Holdings Limited2&# % - At EEL L2 EE
255 Szeto International Holdings Limitedz &
BEBITRA -



Save as disclosed above, no other person other than the Directors or
Chief Executives of the Company had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year under review are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. None of
these related party transactions constitutes connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year with the code
provisions same as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report
and most of the recommended best practices in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Listing Rules
except for certain areas of non-compliance that are discussed in the
Corporate Governance Report.

WA (RED)ARAF - —F - FFFER
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BRAEFTIRERSN - MBERMAL(ARRES
AT ) RIRIBEE SR E GRS
336{HRA R RIA T 178 2 B e A PTaL sk 2 X
BB P EAEDEIORE

BRE KR BN L35

CEFEN EEEALIRSHFBEIANEGE
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties
of the Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to
“A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board
of Directors and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of the Group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the
external audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation. The Audit
Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. LAU Pui Wing and Ms. HO Ting Mei. Two
meetings were held during the current financial year. Audit Committee
had met with the management of the Company and the auditors to
review the final results, considered the significant accounting policies,
and discussed with the management matters relating to the Group’s
internal audit and internal control system. The Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

PR CREE AT

From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital are held by the public at all times during the year.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited has acted as auditor of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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€ ORPORATREEGEONV-ERNANCEPPRACTS -GS

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

Throughout the year of 2020, the Company has complied with all
Code Provisions in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) except for certain areas of non-compliance that
are discussed below.

THE BOARD AND THE MANAGEMENT

The Board lays down corporate strategies, approves overall business
plans and, on behalf of the shareholders, supervises the Company’s
financial performance, its management and organization. The Board is
also responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs the Group and of the results and cash flow of that period. The
Board defines the scope within which the management team carries
out day-to-day management tasks. Each of executive directors
oversees specific areas of our business. The Board is also responsible
for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance duties as defined under the CG Code.

The Board determines the Company’s overall objectives, strategies
and business plans based on the recommendations of the
management team and approves the key figures underlying the
budgets prepared by the management team.
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The Board reviews and approves the Company’s budgets and
checks to see if the targets are being achieved. It also monitors the
Company'’s liquidity and cash positioning. It approves the Company’s
significant transactions.

The Board and management team handle material price sensitive
information with strict confidence. Public announcements are made in
a timely manner to keep shareholders and the public abreast with the
latest developments.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprises six Directors, three
of them are women, half of the Directors are non-executive and
independent of management, thereby promoting critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board has a balance of
skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of the Group’s
businesses. Three of the Directors are executive, namely Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel, Executive Chairman, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia
and Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, and three of the Directors are
independent non-executive, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. Lau Pui
Wing and Ms. Ho Ting Mei. Each of Directors’ respective biographical
details is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. It is the opinion of the Directors
that the Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate
for discharging their duties as Directors in the best interest of the
Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all time
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors,
and complied with the requirement that these should include one such
director with appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or
related financial management expertise. Mr. Lau Pui Wing has the
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial
matters required. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules,
the Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his/her independence to the
Company.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) in September 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis, the Company
will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company’s
business. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings adhere
to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed to
the Board. All Directors have access to board paper and related
materials, and are provided with adequate information which
enables the Board to make an informed decision on the matters to
be discussed and considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free to
have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain further
information, when required and the Directors can obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.

WA (RED)ARAF - —F - FFFER
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To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family relationship among the members of the Board
except that Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is a brother of Ms. TSANG
Chiu Yuen Sylvia. Each of Directors also does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group.

No insurance coverage has been purchased for any of the Directors
as the Board does not foresee any contingent liabilities against the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 4 Board meetings have
been held. Details of the attendance of the Directors are as follows:

ARAPAN REBRREERBRBRMEL LT
ZKN %%QEX“ZFﬁﬁﬁETﬂEﬁ%*
EBARERR - SEFEAKENELM
BEREEKHEERAE -

HREZSRAAEEEETARAEE @ &
YRBEFMESEERR °

ZEZEEFTA=FT—RLEFEE"
SERITINAEE  c EFHEFABOT ¢

Number of Board meeting attended/

Board
E=g
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel WA A
(Executive Chairman) (B177E/E) 4/4
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia EEE R 4/4
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania RPEL LT 4/4
Independent Non-Executive BUHHTEE
Directors
Mr. HUI Yan Kit AL E 4/4
Mr. LAU Pui Wing 2R 4/4

Ms. Ho Ting Mei gL+ 3/4

Number of Board meeting held

HEEEgRERRE
FEBTHNEEEERAY
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee

ENERES REZEE FHEEE

0/0 0/0 0/0
0/0 0/0 0/0
0/0 1/1 1/1
2/2 1/1 1/1
2/2 0/0 0/0
2/2 1/1 1/1
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During the year, the Company convened 1 general mestingon 29 May RAEE  ARFR _ZE-_ZTFHA -+
2020 which was the annual general meeting of the Company. Details BZAB—ABRE A2 @ IARQ T ZREESE
of the attendance of the Directors are as follows: K& EFHEFSBWOT :

Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held

HESERY,
FrETHERRE
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel s BE S A
(Executive Chairman) (B77L5E) 11
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia SRR T 1/1
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KB T 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFBITESE
Mr. HUI Yan Kit BN 3 0/1
Mr. LAU Pui Wing SPHER LA 11

Ms. Ho Ting Mei EES) R e 1/1
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DIRECTORS" TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG code, all directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors of the Company.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company
provided to all Directors related articles on regulatory updates,
management skills and corporate governance from The Journal of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, Hong Kong Institution
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and materials from The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited website. Each of the Directors had noted and
studied the above mentioned documents and that the Company
had received from Directors the confirmations on taking continuous
professional training.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
BIFREEFERS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of 2 years and will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving not less
than six months’ prior notice in writing to the other. All Directors are
subject to retirement from office by the rotation at each annual general
meeting as required by the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”).

Service contracts have been entered between the Company with each
of the independent non-executive Directors providing, amongst other
things, their term of offices for a period of one year until terminated
by either party giving not less than one month’s prior notice in writing
to the other. Moreover, they would also be subject to retirement by
rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company.
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In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company. Directors appointed by the Board during the year are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first
general meeting immediately following their appointments. Further,
at each annual general meeting, one-third of Directors, or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third are required to retire from office.

Each newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong. Orientation meeting with
newly appointed Director would be held for briefing on business and
operations of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry with
all Directors, the Company confirmed that all the Directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

The CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is the Executive
Chairman of the Company and no Chief Executive Officer has been
appointed. The responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer have been
carried out by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel. The Board believes that
it is in the best interest of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole for Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, who is knowledgeable in the
business of the Group and possesses the essential leadership skills to
guide discussions of the Board in an effective manner, to continue to
carry out the responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer, which ensures
on the effectiveness and efficiency of the decision making process of
the Board.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with a written terms of reference which are available from
the Company Secretary at any time. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee include making recommendations for all
appointment, re-designation and re-appointment of Directors to
the Board. As at 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee
comprises of three members, two of whom are independent non-
executive directors, namely Ms. HO Ting Mei, Mr. Hui Yan Kit and one
is executive director, Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania. Ms. Ho Ting Mei
is the Chairman of the Committee.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for determining the
independence of each Director and conducting formal assessment of
the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each
Director to the effectiveness of the Board. In evaluating the Board’s
performance, the Nomination Committee considers a number of
factors, including those set out in the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. During the
year, the Nomination Committee has held one meeting, to review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the existing Board members of the Company to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board to run the business of the
Group steadily.
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The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee, on
named basis and by category at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors will retire
from office at the Company’s annual general meeting. In accordance
with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia, Ms.
Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania and Mr. Hui Yan Kit will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. HUI Yan Kit was
appointed as independent non-executive Directors of the Company in
July 2004. He has been the independent non-executive Director of the
Company for over 16 years.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with written terms of reference no less exacting terms than the
CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available from the Company Secretary at any time. As at 31 December
2020, the Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Ms. HO Ting Mei and one
executive Director, Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania. Mr. HUI Yan Kit is
the Chairman of the Committee.
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EERRE

The duties of the Remuneration Committee includes making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management, approving
the compensation payable to Directors and senior management on
termination or dismissal to ensure they are consistent with contractual
terms and also ensure that no Director was involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. Remuneration package for executive Directors
are as follows:

i The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic
salary and pensions.

2. Salaries are reviewed annually. Salary increases are made
where the Remuneration Committee believes that adjustments
are appropriate to reflect performance, contribution, increased
responsibilities and/or by reference to market/sector trends.

38 In addition to basic salary, executive Directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries are eligible to receive a
discretionary bonus taking into consideration factors such
as market conditions as well as corporate and individual
performances.

4, Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
financial year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments
of the Directors are determined with reference to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and the prevailing market
rates.
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The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee has held one meeting to
review the existing remuneration packages of Directors and senior
managements of the Company, and to recommend the remuneration
packages for Directors of the Company. The recommended
remuneration packages have been approved by the entire Board.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee, on
named basis and by category, at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 28 December 2015 with
written terms of reference setting out the duties and responsibilities.
The Executive Committee consists of five members, namely, Mr.
TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman), Ms. TSANG Chiu
Yuen Sylvia (Executive Director), Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania
(Executive Director), Ms. SZE Tak On (Financial Controller) and
Ms. WONG Yim Tsui Amy (Vice President of Human Resources &
Corporate Affairs). The Executive Committee shall normally meet on a
monthly basis and in any event no less than quarterly.

For more efficient operation of the Board, the Executive Committee
was established mainly (i) to make recommendations to the Board on
the strategic aims, objectives and risk management of the Company;
and (ii) to consider and approve matters relating to the day-to-day
operations of the Group.

The Executive Committee was also delegated by the Board to perform
the corporate governance functions set out in Code Provision D.3.1
of the CG Code including (i) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; (ii) to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv)
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and (v) to review the
Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
which are available from the Company Secretary at any time. The
Audit Committee currently comprises of three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. As at 31 December 2020,
the members are Mr. Lau Pui Wing (the Chairman of the Committee),
Mr. HUI Yan Kit and Ms. HO Ting Mei all of whom are not involved in
the day-to-day management of the Company.

The Audit Committee convenes meetings at least twice a year.
The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
financial information (including the Company’s financial statements,
annual reports, interim reports and major comments on financial
reporting contained in the financial statements and reports),
reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems
and associated procedures, and making recommendations to the
Board on matters regarding the appointment of external auditors and
auditing fee etc.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings,
during which the annual report for the year ended 31 December
2019 and the interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2020
were reviewed. Please refer to the table set out in the section “Board
Practices” of this report for the attendance record of individual
Audit Committee members. All these meetings were convened in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

Save as disclosed above, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that BDO
Limited, Certified Public Accountants (“BDO”), be nominated for re-
appointment as external auditor of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the
Company’s state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and of
its profit or loss for the year then ended. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

° select suitable accounting policies and apply them on a
consistent basis, making judgements and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable;

o state the reasons for any significant departure from the relevant
accounting standards; and

o prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis,
unless it is not appropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business for the foreseeable future.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO, about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 57 to 62.
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AUDITORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION
BDO has been appointed as the external auditor of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020 by shareholders at the annual
general meeting and they will hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been
audited by BDO.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, BDO, the external auditor of
the Group, provided the following services to the Group:
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The Audit Committee reviews each year a letter from the external
auditor confirming their independence and objectivity and holds
meetings with BDO to discuss the scope of their audit.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems. The internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group’s particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed,
and by their nature can only provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or loss.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure,
maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring the reliability
of financial information used for business and publication. Qualified
management throughout the Group maintains and monitors the
internal control systems on an ongoing basis.

The Board has engaged a consultant company to conduct internal
audit function in order to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems during the year and is of
the view that the systems of risk management and internal control
adopted for the year ended 31 December 2020 were assessed to
be satisfactory and were functioning properly, to a large extent, in
safeguarding the assets employed by the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Sze Tak On was appointed as the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. She is also an Authorised
Representative of the Company. The biographical details of Ms.
Sze are set out on page 32 under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”. According to rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Ms. Sze took no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’ relationship
with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has established
various channels of communications with its shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a timely
manner. The annual general meeting provides an opportunity for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman as
well as Chairmen of different Committees are available to answer
shareholders’ questions. Moreover, resolutions are proposed
at annual general meeting on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors. In addition, details of the
poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll
are included in the circular to shareholders despatched together with
the annual report. Details of the proposed resolutions are also set out
in the circular.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at a general meeting shall have the right, by written
requisition served to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The chairman of meeting
will explain the poll voting procedures at the relevant general meeting.

The website of the Group (www.clh.com.hk) is also updated
constantly to inform investors and the general public of the latest
information of the Group.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

E55 ¢ +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Century Legend (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Century
Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 182, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties
(Refer to notes 3.8, 4(b) and 15 in the consolidated financial
statements)

Management estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties to be HK$130,100,000 at 31 December 2020.

Independent external valuations were obtained for all the investment
properties to support management’s estimates. The valuations
are dependent on certain key assumptions that require significant
management judgment, including recent market information
about prices for comparable properties with potentially significant
adjustments for any differences in the characteristics of the Group’s
properties.

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of investment
properties included:

- evaluating the independent external valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness
of key assumptions based on our knowledge of the property
industry; and

- checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of
the input data used and the resultant calculations.

BB 5 9
FAREZFEAREESNERAE - AR
HARRGAMBRERNELZZREENS
B BENEZEBRAMEHRRERENLS
FEEBUEAERL  MAERMEFTERE
BERER -

BREYRME
(ZhRiaR & B 15 MR RES.8 - 4(0) %2 15)

ERERE BEXREZRENENR-F
—EFE+ AT -HZAFEREXR
130,100,0007T ©

PIEREMEYCEEBUINSEE - U
FSERE 2B c FEIRRETEIER
HMZERRVFTEEERBFEHERSH
B BRBERALEMEERIIHATISE
B EhRERZEFTLERDEE HE5E
MEZRZHEEZREHBHEEE -

EENERBHREDE ZHEMFERZE
Freda

= BB INEEERM B e K
HEE

- REEFHWERTEZRE  FEM
RAZTERTIERRZAENE &

- HEREAMRABABBIEEER
MEEAME - ARFTGRTEER -



AL (SRED) ARAF - —F - FFEER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

[RECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T 57 A% B R

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks; and, obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

- conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T 57 A% B R

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung Tze Wai
Practising Certificate Number P06158

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o T N &3

for the year ended 31 December 2020 « &7 - E-F#F = H=1+—HIFZF

2020 2019
TEDEF —E-NF
(Re-presented)
(&=71))
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BT T
Revenue g 5(a) 35,348 31,023
Cost of revenue W 2 A AR (23,092) (12,729)
Gross profit ER 12,256 18,294
Other income E g A 5(b) 11,426 5,238
Fair value loss on financial assets at BATEEGAEBRZ
fair value through profit or loss WG EE 2 AT EEE (12,813) (12,102)
Fair value gain on investment properties 1% &Y% 2 AT EWE 15 - 10,000
Gain on disposal of an investment property HEREWE 2 W= 15 - 800
Administrative expenses THAX (28,898) (36,287)
Finance costs BhE A AR 7 (5,318) (6,816)
Loss before income tax FRFTIS BRI ES 18 8 (23,347) (20,873)
Income tax expense Fri3 R 9 (2,391) (907)
Loss for the year rEEEBR (25,738) (21,780)
Other comprehensive income Hit2EUWBA
Item that will not be reclassified HESTEEFFBZ
subsequently Bm2HEE
to profit or loss:
Changes in fair value of equity BEAFEFAEMER
instruments at fair value through IWAZBRATARZ
other comprehensive income NEEEE (1,620) 461
Other comprehensive income for AEEHMEEEA
the year (1,620) 461
Total comprehensive income for REEZHEUALEE

the year (27,358) (21,319)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

o TN &3

for the year ended 31 December 2020 ¢ #% —ZE —TF+ - H=+—HIFFZ

2020
—EZEHF

Note HK$°000
B 5 BT T
Loss for the year attributable to: DT EERGARFERSRE :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZZEDN (24,063)
Non-controlling interests SRR = (1,675)
(25,738)
Total comprehensive income for NTEEEREAREE
the year attributable to: 2HEU AL :
Owners of the Company KABHEE A (25,683)
Non-controlling interests JERRR i (1,675)
(27,358)
HK cents
Al
Basic and diluted loss per share BREXREEER 10
- Basic — &K (7.38)
— Diluted -85 (7.38)

2019
—F-NF
(Re-presented)
(F& &%)
HK$’000
BT

(21,234)

(546)

(21,780)

(20,773)
(546)

(21,319)

HK cents
Bl
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A e B IR UL R

as at 31 December 2020 * R—FE-FF+—-H=+—H

2020 2019
—BEF —E—NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M= BT T BEETIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I E R Gy 14 240,742 232,299
Investment properties WEME 15 130,100 130,100
Financial assets at fair value through other &2 EsH A H a2 E A
comprehensive income U EE 16 4,446 9,298
375,288 371,697
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 83 85
Financial assets at fair value through profit A F BT AEZ 2
or loss B EE 18 69,946 88,836
Trade and other receivables, deposits and & 3£ K B fth FE U AR 7X
prepayments e RIBNRIE 19 8,177 4,087
Amount due from non-controlling interest & U 3F 128 A% 1 2 50 18 20 10 10
Tax recoverable AU E1F 1B = 32
Pledged bank deposits BIRIRITIE K 21 92,469 86,062
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTAS 22 26,325 21,866
197,010 200,978
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables &R FETERFR 23 137
Other payables and accruals HAth FE T AR SR R FE AT 5RIE 5,155
Amount due to a shareholder FE —BARRFIR 24 -
Contract liabilities SHBE 25 45 450
Amount due to non-controlling interest JEHQH % i 2= 3R IR 20 P 2
Lease liabilities HEAE 33(a) 8,935 4,419
Bank borrowings (secured) RITEE(FER) 26 195,806 196,950
225,266 207,113
Net current liabilities REAEFE (28,256) (6,135)
Total assets less current liabilities WEERRBEE 347,032 365,562
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

5B BB IR LR
as at 31 December 2020 » R - E_-TF+_-HA=+—H
2020 2019
et et 53 —T-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ihg=2 BET T P T T
Non-current liabilities ERBERS
Lease liabilities HEaE 33(a) 9,803 2,955
Bank borrowings (secured) RITEE(FER) 26 8,565 8,987
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIEA R 27 6,652 4,250
25,020 16,192
Net assets EEFHE 322,012 349,370
EQUITY s
Share capital fi& s 28 65,215 65,215
Reserves s 32 254,629 280,312
Equity attributable to the owners of KRB AELER
the Company 319,844 345,527
Non-controlling interests JEIE IR R S 2,168 3,843
Total equity S 322,012 349,370
On behalf of the directors RERE=S
Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania
B SREAE
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

o

34 g%

B %

for the year ended 31 December 2020 « &7 - E-F#F = H=1+—HIFZF

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

KATREARRR
Financial
assetsat
fair value
through
other
comprehensive Share Non-
Share Share Capital  Revaluation income option  Accumulated controlling
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses* Total interests Total
RATE
HARMEE
WAZEH
& B Exif Effik EEffT  BRERRE ZithE gt ERER it
(Note 32(a)) (Note 32(0)) (Note 32(c)) (Note 32(d)
(hifage) (ol (o) (iEag)
HK§ 000 HK§000 HKS1000. HK$000 HK§000 HK§000 HKS1000. HK§ 000 HK§000 HKS000
BB T BT EETT AT ey EBTT EETT AT Ay
At1 January 2019 H-2-15-5-R 61,941 163,481 146,189 846 2,265 5,580 (9.552) 360,756 4386 365,142
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - 21,234) 21,234) (546) (21,780)
(Other comprehensive income EGETON
- Changes in far value of equity instruments — ~RAFEFAZH2E
at fairvaug through other comprehensie A ZRATEZ
income 1TEEY - - - - 461 = = 461 = 46
Total comprehensive ncome for theyear A E2ERALE - - - - 461 - (21,234) (20,773 (346 (21,319
Shares option granted [note 29) B ERE(:) - - - - - 469 - 469 = 16
Shares issued under sharg option scheme  BEBRE 2R T2 IR
[note 29) (Kistoo) 3274 4,746 - - - (2,945) - 5075 - 5075
Transfer of financial assets t fai value through R\EERATFEF A LH2E
other comprehensive income resenveupon WA RAT A kEER
the disposal of equiy instruments at fairvalue AT &3 AZ 2 ENA
through other comprehensive income HEZREE = - - - 2690) - 2,69 - - -
Contrbuton from non-controling interests 3 ERRE - - - - - - - - 3 3
At 31 December 2019 KZE-NETZA=1-B 65,215 168,227 146,189 846 3 3,110 (28,096) 345,521 3843 349,310
At1 January 2020 R-E-EE-5-A 65,215 158,221 146,189 (28,096) 345,527 3843 349,370
Loss for the year KEgER - - - (24,063) (24,083) (1675) (2573%)
Other comprehensive income HH2EUA

- Changes i far value of equity nstuments  ~RATEAEH2E
at fairvaue through other comprehensiie WA RETEZ ATE
income 8

Total comprehensive income for the year ~ REE2EMALE

Transfer offnancial assets t fai value through FEERATEH A A 2T
other comprehensive income resene upon A RAT EfkERR
the disposal of equity insruments at fairvalue ATzt AZH2ENA
ihrough otfer comprefiensive inoome Gl oeE

At 31 December 2020 R-B-BE+-f=1-R 65,215

168,221

146,189

846

(1,620

(1,620)

(375)

(1959)

The total balances of these equity accounts at the end of reporting period *
represent “Reserves” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

(24,063)

315

(51,784)

(1620

25,683)

319,844

(1,675)

2,168

(1620

(27,358)

322,012

MN|ESR - I ERER 2 BERIERA M BR

MERAZ [FEE] -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
m,j: AW ER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 e« # %= —F -FTFf—H=+—HI FZ

2020 2019
—E-EF —TNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B BT T P T IT
Cash flows from operating activities REEKELZHEERE
Loss before income tax FRFTISBiRTE 1B (23,347) (20,873)
Adjustments for: AT SRELAE
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENMRETE
equipment 14 604
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 14 5,248
Fair value gain on investment properties &% 7 A T E ks 15 (10,000)
Employee share option expense EERERIEMRS 29 469
Fair value loss on financial assets AT ER AER
at fair value through profit or loss VR EE N EEE 12,813 12,102
Bank interest income RITHBHA (2,300) (3,519)
Dividend income from listed investments KB TR & 2 % 2 U A (3,128) (2,025)
Gain on disposal of an investment HE—BREYE WS
property = (800)
Finance costs BhE AN 5,318 6,816
Write-off of property, plant and WEEME - BB RF&
equipment 6 16
Gain on disposal of property, ﬁ’%%¥ = NMEEZ
plant and equipment Wezs (5) -
Operating loss before working capital NEEEESEFHA 2
changes wEEE (1,563) (11,958)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, (%) P (15)
Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets WA EFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss BEEAERL (3% m) 6,077 (95,499)
Increase in trade and other receivables, &% R HthEIWEER - 2$
deposits and prepayments MBS FRIE 1 N (2,851) (679)
Increase in amount due from JE s FE4EE AR e 2 SR IR AN
non-controlling interest (10)
Increase in amount due to non-controlling &1~ FF 52 A% 25 ZR IR 1E AN
interest 5
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, CEEMIRR  EMER
other payables and accruals IR R FEET IR
a0 Crd) (7,242)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilites & 418 & KD ), /1 450
Cash generated from/(used in) AR RS () E S
operating activities (114,948)
Income tax refunded BREFTER -
Net cash generated from/(used in) IR RS () B S
operating activities JEEE (114,948)




AL (SRED) ARAF - —F - FFEER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2020 * # % —

n‘/j‘

2020

= i

Notes HK$°000
Kt BET T

Cash flows from investing activities

REXBELEZRERE

Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E 4% - = L& E

Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Increase in pledged bank deposits

Decrease in bank deposits maturing
beyond three months

Bank interest received

Dividend received from listed investments

Proceeds from disposal of an investment
property

Proceeds from disposal of financial

HEWE - BEX
F‘ﬁ{?/%\lﬁ
EERMRITEZIL N
BB=1EA2Hz
RITEFOR A
BEUERITHE

Bl e ETIRE 2B E
HE—BREMEZ
PSR

R

HERAFEFARMEE

(383)

5
(6,407)

1,061
3,128

15

assets at fair value through other WA Z Hﬂ%ﬁﬁz

comprehensive income FRr 15 50
Net cash generated from RERXBHRHEES

investing activities JEEE
Cash flows from financing activities FIEEBEEZHRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEBB A 34 =
Repayment of bank borrowings ERIRITEE 34 (1,566)
Increase in amount due to a shareholder &5 — 42 I 5 R IE 1L 1) 34 15,000
Repayment of principle portion of BEHERBERSE D

the lease liabilities 34 (5,782)
Interest paid on lease liabilities HEARENHE 34 (756)
Loan interest paid BENEFRFE 34 (4,562)

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares

BITES %HxZﬁfM IR

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

BE B (FTFE)
B2 FHE

EH SR =R

—FE A= — AR

2019
—T—NF
HK$’000
BT T

(2,482)

(5,680)
51,361

4,000
2,025

16,800

5,541
71,565

194,602
(194,432)

(5,227)

(527)
(6,289)
5,075

(6,798)

69



70 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2020

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
m,j: AW ER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 e« # %= —F -FTFf—H=+—HI FZ

2020 2019
—EZEH —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T P T IT
Net increase/(decrease) incashand BHERBELZEY
cash equivalents i, (GRd) B8 (50,181)
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—BzE&ER:
at 1 January £EY 72,047
Cash and cash equivalents R+-—A=+—-RHAZBE&R
at 31 December REeEEY 21,866
Analysis of the balances of cashand R&RBLZEFEY >tk
cash equivalents Bak il
Cash and bank balances as stated in REFE IR RINERZ
consolidated statement of financial B& RIBTTA
position 21,866
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AL (SRED) ARAF - —F - FFEER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2020 * #F -~ E-FF - F=1+—HIFZF

GENERAL INFORMATION

Century Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company’s registered office is at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda and its principal
place of business is at Unit 906, 9th Floor, Capital Centre, 151
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$’000") except when otherwise indicated.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 31. The Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as
“the Group” hereinafter.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to
182 have been prepared in accordance with all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collectively includes individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The depreciation of leased properties held for the Group’s
hair styling services for the year ended 31 December 2020
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income has
been reclassified from administrative expenses to cost of
revenue. The Group considered that the current presentation
is more appropriate for the results of the Group following
the development of the Group’s hospitality services. The
comparative amounts in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2019
are re-presented accordingly.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 were approved and authorised for issue by the
directors on 30 March 2021.
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2.

—FFEF A=+ —HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective on 1 January 2020

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2020:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material
HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 39,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

Other than the amendments to HKFRS 3, none of these
new or amended HKFRSs has material impact on the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior period and/or accounting policies. Impact on the
application of amendments to HKFRS 3 is summarised
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective on 1 January 2020 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a
Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business
and introduce an optional concentration test that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The
election to apply the concentration test is made for
each transaction. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined
not to be a business. If the concentration test is failed,
the acquired set of activities and assets is further
assessed based on the elements of a business.

The Group elected to apply the amendments
prospectively to acquisitions for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2020.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective
The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®
Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause®
Proceeds before Intended Use®

HK-Int 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract®
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework*
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions’
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 22

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and
HKFRS 16 Leases®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

4 Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
The directors of the Company anticipate that all of the
relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning after the
effective date of the pronouncement.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and

HK Int 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The
revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the
interpretation to align with the Amendments to HKAS 1
with no change in conclusion and do not change the
existing requirements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments and revision in the future
will have an impact on the financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing
the impact, but they consider that the application of the
amendments will not have material effect to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts
- Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g.
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

The directors of the Company is currently assessing
the impact, but they consider that the application of
the amendments will not have significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of
past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 to determine whether the obligating event that
gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by
the acquisition date. The amendments also add an
explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have an
impact on the financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED

HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical
expedient to lessees in accounting for rent concessions
arising as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, by
including an additional practical expedient in HKFRS
16 that permits entities to elect not to account for rent
concessions as modifications. The practical expedient
applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of
the following criteria are satisfied:

(a) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;

(b) the reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions (Continued)

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may
be accounted for in accordance with this practical
expedient, which means the lessee does not need to
assess whether the rent concession meets the definition
of lease modification. Lessees shall apply other
requirements of HKFRS 16 in accounting for the rent
concession.

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications
would have resulted in the Group remeasuring the
lease liability to reflect the revised consideration using
a revised discount rate, with the effect of the change
in the lease liability recorded against the right-of-use
asset. By applying the practical expedient, the Group is
not required to determine a revised discount rate and
the effect of the change in the lease liability is reflected
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concession occurs.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have an
impact on the financial statements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the old
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform
(the “Reform”). The amendments complement those
issued in November 2019 and relate to (a) changes
to contractual cash flows in which an entity will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount
of financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest
rate to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark
rate; (b) hedge accounting in which an entity will
not have to discontinue its hedge accounting solely
because it makes changes required by the Reform, if
the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; and
(c) disclosures in which an entity will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising from the
Reform and how it manages the transition to alternative
benchmark rates.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have an
impact on the financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

- HKFRS 9, which clarify the fees included in the
‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS
9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the entity or the lender
on other’s behalf are included.

- HKFRS 16, which amend lllustrative Example 13
to remove the illustration of reimbursement of
leasehold improvements by the lessor in order
to resolve any potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives that might arise
because of how lease incentives are illustrated in
that example.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have an
impact on the financial statements.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of preparation and going concern
assumption
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments
which are stated at fair value. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the loss of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$25,738,000.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$28,256,000. Out of which, secured bank
borrowings of approximately HK$157,706,000 would
be due for repayment in 2021 in accordance with the
repayment dates of the respective agreements and
a shareholder loan of HK$15,000,000 without fixed
term of repayment, while the Group maintained the
pledged bank deposits and cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$92,469,000 and HK$26,325,000
respectively.

Notwithstanding the above, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis as the directors considered that the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to meet in full its
working capital requirements and financial obligations
during the next twelve months. The events that have
been considered include the following:

(i) A shareholder has confirmed to provide financial
support to the Group to finance its operations
and not to recall the shareholder loan until the
Group has the ability to repay;
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation and going concern

assumption (Continued)

(if) The Group has been in the process of
renewing with its banker the bank facilities of
approximately HK$155,120,000. As a result of
the outbreak of COVID-19, the bank agreed to
extend the expiry date of these facilities to 30
June 2021 for having more time to process the
renewal. The Group considered that the renewal
would be completed based on its credit history
and fair value of the collateral; and

(ifi) The Group would consider disposing of certain
investment properties to provide further funding
when the liquidity needs arise.

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see note 3.3 below). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method when the acquired
set of activities and assets meets the definition of a
business and control is transferred to the Group. In
determining whether a particular set of activities and
assets is a business, the Group assesses whether
the set of assets and activities acquired includes, at
a minimum, an input and substantive processes and
whether the acquired set has the ability to produce
outputs. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interest either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by another HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments, in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EE st BURMEE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Business combination and basis of 3.2 XEBEHRFEEE(E)

consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present:

- power over the investee;

- exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee; and

- the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns.

Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the end of the reporting period retranslation of
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$
at the closing rates at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses have been converted into HK$
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or
at the average exchange rates for the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from this procedure
have been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the translation
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.5

Revenue and other income recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

= provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

— does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.5

Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For contracts
where the period between the payment and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 157).

The Group recognised revenue as the following basis:

(a) Revenue from rendering of hair styling services
is recognised when the relevant services are
rendered and transferred over time. There is only
one performance obligation. In general, there is
no credit term offered to the customers which is
consistent with market practice.

(b) Rental income under leases arrangements is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

(c) Service fee income in relation to hospitality
services is recognised when the relevant services
are provided to the customers.

(d) Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.5 Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Commission and management fee income
is recognised when the agreed services are
provided.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Revenue from rendering of property
project management services

The Group has determined that there are
significant integration of different elements
underlying a property management contract and
thus such contracts are considered to contain
only a single performance obligation. In addition,
the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced. Accordingly, the revenue
from these contracts are recognised over time.

When the outcome of a performance obligation
in the property management contract can be
reasonably measured, contract revenue and the
associated contract costs are recognised over
time based on the progress of the respective
contract at the end of the reporting period.
The progress toward complete satisfaction
of the performance obligation of a property
management contract is determined by
reference to the contract costs incurred to date
as a proportion of the total estimated contract
costs. Contract costs and contract progress
are highly correlated for property management
contract.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.5 Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)

(9)

Revenue from rendering of property
project management services
(Continued)

When the outcome of a performance obligation
in the property management contract cannot
be reasonably measured, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are expected to be recovered.

Contract modification (i.e. variation order)
are recognised when they are approved by
customer. Generally modification to a property
management contract is not accounted for as
a separate contract. Contract modification is
accounted for as if it were a part of the existing
contract and, therefore, form part of a single
performance obligation that is partially satisfied
at the date of the contract modification. The
effect that the contract modification on the
contract sum and on the Group’s measures of
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation, is recognised as an
adjustment to revenue (either as an increase
in or a reduction of revenue) at the date of
the contract modification (i.e. the adjustment
to revenue is made on a cumulative catch-
up basis). For approved modifications where a
change in price has not been agreed and other
claims, they are accounted for following the
requirements in relation to variable consideration
that the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is
constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. E 2 5 BOR M2 (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.5 Revenue and other income recognition 3.5 WamkHMBARER(E)

(Continued)

(g) Revenue from rendering of property

project management services
(Continued)
If at any time the costs to complete the contract
are estimated to exceed the remaining amount of
the consideration under the contract, a provision
is recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy for onerous contracts as set out in note
3.18.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group
completes the property project management works
under such services contracts but yet certified by
architects, surveyors or other representatives appointed
by customers. Any amount previously recognised as
a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables
at the point at which it is certified and invoiced to the
customer. If the considerations (including advances
received from customers) exceeds the revenue
recognised to date, then the Group recognises a
contract liability for the difference.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.6

3.7

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes its purchase price and the costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their cost net of expected residual value
over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each of the reporting period. The useful lives
are as follows:

Over the shorter of
remaining lease term
or estimated

useful life

Over the shorter of
remaining lease term
or estimated

useful life

Over the shorter of
remaining lease term
or estimated

Leasehold land and buildings

Right-of-use for other
properties leased

Motor vehicles

useful life
Leasehold improvements 10 - 33"/5%
Furniture, fixtures and office 20 — 33"/3%

equipment

AL (SR ARAF -

i‘ﬂ‘l‘

G RTBURME (%)

3.6

3.7

“E R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

EoFF A=t ALEE

BE KA
Wi - 2ENEEREREE
(ZARABRE R A ERE M
BRHE)ERELENEEK
KOBRER  FRZFEE
AR — &Rty o oA RIS
%S A E A S M 8 A TR
EEE  YTREERERZSE
fEEMRSEMEA - ZFK
ABREEREWEERAH
B TBEREMEERATDRE
HEZHERNEREER -

ME - BERRE
ME - BB RRERREEK
AR RETITE OB E B 1R (40
BN - WE  BEEREBZ
RABIHEREE B AR WIER
BZERBIERA -

Mm% - BERRER T
ERTHNREREENE
FRLL OB 2 AR (I A B

BE) BEZIFHEE HE
TERTERFHRERE L

RFAER  WEHEZEBRAT
FHEE o AEAFHNT
HELwREF  FepHEE
EREEESE
FH(RE
REAE)
HEmAEmE T A FH HR 2k
= FA%E (EEGIRESEE
FHI(IR®
RERE)
RE a4 THHA 5k
fHEFAIE
FHR (IR &
REAE)
HEMREEE 10 - 33'/5%
B HER 20 - 33"/5%
WAERME

93



94

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 * # %= —

—EET A= HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets, or where shorter, the term of the relevant
lease.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount (See note 3.9).

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.8

3.9

Investment properties (Continued)

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by
external professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property. The carrying amounts recognised
at the end of the reporting period reflect the prevailing
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair
value or the sale of an investment property are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties or inventories, the deemed cost of
property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at
the date of change in use.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Prepaid land lease payments, property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and the Company’s
interests in subsidiaries are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.9

3.10

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

Leases

(@) Accounting as a lessee
All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity
to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are
short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases
for which at the commencement date have
a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have
been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.10 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised
at cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property to which the Group applies
the revaluation model, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liability. The Group presents right-of-use assets
that do not meet the definition of investment
property in “Property, plant and equipment” in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.10 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use of
the underlying asset during the lease term that
are not paid at the commencement date of the
lease are considered to be lease payments:
(i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement
date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.10 Leases (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g.,
a change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group presents lease liabilities separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment
properties to a number of tenants. Rental income
from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on the straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments

(a)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for
selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”):
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or
at FVOCI, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables, contract assets, financial assets
measured at amortised cost and debt
investments measured at FVOCI. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases:
(i) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the 12
months after the end of the reporting period: and
(i) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets using simplified approach under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment loss on financial assets

(Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at FVTPL
are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured
at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, other payables and accruals,
amount due to non-controlling interests, lease
liabilities and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(c)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group
and not designated as at FVTPL is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of:
(i) the amount of the loss allowance, being the
ECLs provision measured in accordance with
principles of the accounting policy set out in note
3.11(b); and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

3.12

(c)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid
is recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods and consumable
stocks and are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolescence on slow moving items. Cost, calculated
on the first-in, first-out basis, comprises invoiced value
of goods and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present locations and conditions.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes

3. EEEFHEORME (5)

3.13 FiIEBizEstRE

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of income tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences. This involves the
comparison of the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements with
their respective tax bases at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried forward
as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2020 * #F -~ E-FF - F=1+—HIFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. e s ORI (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

3.13 IR EstEE (&)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at
fair value under HKAS 40 Investment Property. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income
or directly to equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if, the Group:

(a) has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13

3.14

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities;
and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either (i) the same
taxable entity; or (ii) different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
in hand as well as short-term bank deposits with original
maturities of three months or less which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share premium

Share premium includes any premiums received on the
issuance of shares over the par value. Any transaction
costs associated with the issuance of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.

3

3.13

3.14

3.15

&R EURMEE ()

FEBzastEE (&)
AEBRERUATERAFRE
2YETERTEE ERIREERHE
afg:

@ REBREARBINT
R AR AV TR E &
HEPHF AR EHH
&

(o) IREFIBE EMELER
BHABRBENRA -8B
B8 3t A TRl — I8 BT
UK ERSEL ()R — &
A ER i) Ft RN
BEARREE (MIBEE
R A 4 E sk
Bl XERELEHEBARG
REE)NFREELE
BNERFLIE B fE B & E ok
AREREEREEA
ENTRERHEE -

RERREEEY
RehReFEMRERTR
FRASUAREEZHERBR
BzREMBES=AHIAT
ZIRITREAER -

R A7 %18

R0 4 (B B 45 3 17 B0 B P AR
BRERNEEEZEMEE - &
B #ITHBEZ AR HKRA
75 8 B An e 18 HRL (FRER E AT 48
FARTSBAeS) - HABRAR 5
BEERBIEZEMRARBR -



AL (SR ARAF -

“E R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2020 * # % —

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.16 Retirement benefit costs and short-term

employee benefits

3.17

(a)

(b)

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short-term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans to remunerate its employees and
directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the share options awarded. Their value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.17

3.18

Share-based employee compensation
(Continued)

Share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in share options reserve. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at the end of each of
the reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all other vesting conditions
are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether
the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are later forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained profits/
accumulated losses.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation. All provisions are reviewed at
the end of each of the reporting period and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.18

3.19

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of continuing
with the contract.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the chief operating
decision maker i.e. the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.20 Government grant

3.21

Government grants are not recognized until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognized as income or
deducted in the related expenses, as appropriate, in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred.

Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are recognized as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognized
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable and are recognized as other income, rather
than reducing the related expense.

Related parties
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(ifi) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.21 Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.21 Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;
(if) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon
the financing plan assessed as detailed in note 3.1 to these
consolidated financial statements. However, because not all
future events or conditions can be predicted, this assumption
is not a guarantee as to the Group’s and Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial reporting period
are as below:

(a)

(b)

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for grouping of various customers that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially
based on the Group’s historical observed default rates
taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. At the end of each of the reporting
period, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in forward-looking information
are considered. For the assessment on the ECLs on the
trade receivables, refer to note 36.5 for details.

Estimated fair value of investment properties
As disclosed in note 15, the Group’s investment
properties were revalued at the end of the reporting
period by independent professional valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the judgment, the
Group considers latest completed transactions and
information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each
of the reporting period.

For more detailed information in relation to fair value
measurement of investment properties, refer to note 15.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and

equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for property, plant and equipment. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of
property, plant and equipment is estimated using the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposals and its-
value-in-use. If the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset
to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The determination
of recoverable amount based on value-in-use
calculation incorporates a number of key estimates
and assumptions about future events and therefore,
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making these key estimates
and judgments, the directors take into consideration
assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period
and appropriate market and discount rates. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market
data and actual transactions entered into by the
Group. Future changes in the events and conditions
underlying the estimates and judgements would affect
the estimation of recoverable amounts and result in
adjustments to their carrying amounts.
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5(a). REVENUE 5(a). W ta
Revenue which is derived from the Group’s principal activities, FR - KREAEETEERZBEER
is recognised during the year as follows: WS -

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BEET T

Rendering of hair styling services and

RSB RF &

related product sales HEAEMEE 18,120
Securities investments EEKRE 3,688
Hospitality services income IRIE R AR AU A 118
Gross rental income from investment RKEREME HEBIRA

properties 9,097
Interest income from money lending KEBEZFBUWA =
Service income from property REYMEERER ZIRBUWA

management project -

31,023
5(b). OTHER INCOME 5(b). HAt A
2020 2019
g Jemg 2.2 —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Bank interest income HRITHEHWA 2,300 3,515
Dividend income from listed investments & B8 A AT A M2 E
classified as financial assets at FVOCI WA 5 38 B8 75
BENLEHRE ZBRBWA 613
Sundry income HIFIE A 1,110
Government subsidies (Note) T A B (PR 3E) =
Exchange gain B 3 Wz -
5,238
Note: Among the government subsidies, an amount of HK$1,542,000 Bt & Eﬂl}ﬁ‘%ﬁﬁbﬁi\*ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ,542_,00073(:
(2019: nil) is government grant obtained from the Employment %fﬂﬁ L) BE B RIITIRE BT
Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched W%E%ﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬂ%?fi%ﬂ%ﬂ(H%?)ﬁ%?r
by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region B REAREXNESFSOEY
supporting the payroll of the Group’s employees. Under the ESS, the IRIBIR LKA B - AEREE AGEE %
Group had to commit to spend these grants on payroll expenses, EWOERH SR WERTEHHA
and not to reduce employee head count below prescribed levels for a T EEBABRDERERFUT -
specified period of time. The Group has complied with the requirements ARERBE_T_TF+_A=+—

set out in the ESS for the year ended 31 December 2020. BUFEERBRITEBRUEBIZRE -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the Group’s executive directors for
their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and review of these components’
performance. The business components in the internal
reporting to the executive directors who are the chief operating
decision makers are determined following the Group’s major
product and service lines. The Group is currently organised
into the following six operating segments:

Hair styling — Provision of hair styling and related
services and product sales in
Hong Kong

Money lending — Provision of commercial and

personal loans in Hong Kong

Property investments Investing in commercial and
residential properties for rental
income and for potential capital
appreciation in both Macau and

Hong Kong

Securities investments

Investing in listed equity securities
in Hong Kong and equity-linked
investments in Hong Kong

Hospitality services — Provision of hospitality services in
Hong Kong
Property project — Provision of property related

management project management service

SRR
RECHERTAEEHTEEUHR
WEREAEERGAKEN 2 ER
DEARRHZFEHD KA ZATH
BEMN AKECHBELES HBIL
BROBMER - NHEZMTATES
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by reportable segments:

i

Hair styling BRHE
Money lending Epc
Property investments

—

MERE

Securities investments BHIEE
Hospitality services ERE& AT AR
Property project management #1318 B &8

Unallocated income RO BBA
Exchange gain/(loss), net B N e (B518)F 8
Corporate staff costs ARIBIAA

Other corporate and HiRE AR B

unallocated expenses

Loss before income tax

BR TS 75 A 5 1R

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from

external customers.

Segment results represent the profit earned/loss incurred
by each segment without allocation of central administrative
costs. Segment results excluded certain bank interest income,
dividend income from financial assets at FVOCI and exchange
gain/(loss), net which arise from assets that are managed on
a group basis. Segment results also excluded corporate staff
costs and other corporate and unallocated expenses. This
is the measure reported to the executive directors for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.

0.

Segment revenue

7 BB U &

2020
B
HK$ 000
BETT

15,236
2
4,257
2,969
8,976
3,908

35,348 31,023

7wl &R (A

panzi 6 Y 3
AEBRAIZKD MWD 2 Wam B F

Bzt

Segment results
DEEE
2019 2020 2019
— N bty — T F
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BT

18,120 (22)
- (19) (28)

9,097 (4,161) 1,048
3,688 (9,845) (8,415)
118 (1,869) 65

- 84 -

(15,832)

4,560
5,547
(7,434)

(10,188)

(23,347) (20,873)

LB E2H KSR KBRINEETF
Z WS o

DERBEEZ D BEBM BN, FRE
EZEER > WES RPRITHEAR
DHEETBRREEEAGELEEE L&
EELZETRITMBEA - HAF
B AEMBEZAEBANTHEEEZR
BURARER Wz (BE)FE -2
BEETIBEERRBEIREREM
RAUARKRDBERX o W RITE
BEE2EWZ R BEENBEERARFT
B BRI
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 0.

Segment assets and liabilities

HEALHESE (M) HRAT - % FEER

ol E R (4])
PHEERAE

2020
—g-%%F

—

HK$’000

BT

9,876
66
135,813
71,784
230,722
322

Segment assets PEEE

Hair styling SEAIRET

Money lending BE

Property investments MERE

Securities investments BAIRE

Hospitality services PR JE N SR AR 7S

Property project management METEE B IR

Total segment assets D EBE AR

Financial assets at FVOCI BEAFEFTAEHAM
2EWAZ T EEE

Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITIFR

Short-term bank deposits EHEERITER

Other corporate and unallocated assets

HEtRBIRADEEE

448,583

4,446
92,469
2,361
24,439

572,298

5,561
23
15,865
46,858
241

Consolidated total assets EHEERT
Segment liabilities PEEE

Hair styling SEAIRET
Money lending BE

Property investments MERE
Hospitality services R JE K SR EF AR TS
Property project management METEE B
Total segment liabilities DEPBELRTEE
Deferred tax liabilities R IBAE
Bank borrowings RITIEE

Other corporate and unallocated liabilities

HibRAIRADBEEE

68,548

6,652
155,120
19,966

Consolidated total liabilities

BHAEARE

250,286

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
ST T

11,741
95
140,147
89,271
217,828

459,082

9,298
86,062

18,233

572,675

7,270
23
53,077
160

60,530
4,250

155,120
3,405

223,305
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than financial assets at FVOCI, pledged bank deposits
and short-term bank deposits which are managed
on group basis and other corporate and unallocated
assets; and

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than deferred tax liabilities and certain bank borrowings
which are managed on group basis, and other
corporate and unallocated liabilities.

Other segment information

Fair value gain on

Interest income investment properties

HERA RENEZATERE

2020 2019 2020 2019
Z22RF melgkdl- 2o gk

HK$'000 [GLEXCUMN HKS'000 WSS

Lol AR LS AETT

Hair styling EdilEE 1 -
Property investments W14 4 1,064 10,000
Hospitality services  i¢E RaNE R = -
1,065 10,000

Unallocated AR 2,450 =
Total @t 3,515 10,000

6. JrERERL(FH)
SHEEREME(H)
RERSBRARS EEHHHER
s :

- HMBEBEEHIEETNEHDH
(BRFERARME2EKAZ
MBEEE RESELEEREZ
BEERRTERRERHRITE
FAREMBRRRARDEEE
BRSM + &

- HBREHIEENE2®HN
(BEEHRERERREAGELEE
BZETRITEEREMAR
RRDERBERIN) °

\:

)

H fth 5 56 & %
Additions to specified
Finance costs non-current assets Depreciation
BENA EEERDEEZAE it

2020 2019 2020 2019
23 “ENF bl TfF
HK$'000 MRELCIVOM HKS'000 GICYOOM HK$'000 MRLE
LA BRI WSO ST WSS AETTL

251 41
327 6,269 -
1,289 =

210
13,620 =

1,867

6,624 PESENI

3,451 192 13 2

52318 (KNETN 10,563

1,878
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Geographical information

The geographical location of the specified non-current assets
(i.e. non-current assets excluding financial assets) is based on
the physical location of the assets. The geographical location
of customers is based on the location at which the services
were provided or the goods were delivered.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of the
specified non-current assets and revenue from external
customers, analysed by the geographical location.

ori e R (4E)

it EE R
BEFRDEE(ATBENKEEY
ERBEE) 2HBLENRBEER
BREMES D - RPZHMEMETD
RBERERERERTEZLES
ﬁj\o

AT ABETEIRRBEEREMEREK
BIMNBRP 2 a2 DGR BB
D)

Specified Revenue from
non-current assets external customers
EEHFRBEE RENBEF 2 W@

=

HK$°000
BETT

Hong Kong (place of domicile) & /& (FT#EHE)
Macau P

370,842

Information about a major customer
None of the customers individually contributed 10% or more of
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Revenue from a customer of the Group’s property investments
segment amounted to HK$4,700,000 which represented
more than 10% of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2019.

285,382
85,460

362,399

2019 2020 2019

Rt S —z -5 JRESPNE

HK$’000
BT T

HK$’000
BT T

HK$’000
BETIT

275,969 32,404 28,222
86,430 2,944 2,801

35,348 31,023

FBE—RBXEEZEFMWER
REZE-_ZEZ-_ZF+_A=+—HI
FE - BEANBEPEAEERIELL
Bl3ZE10%8 A £ o

REBEEZZT-NF+_A=+—HIE
FE  REXEEWELRED 2 —
BEP W BB 4,700,0007T ¢ 16
REBURES L F17810% ©
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. Zr#F&HR (4)

Disaggregation of revenue oW =R
In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers TRIEZEEED I RN ATERERE D5
is disaggregated by operating segments and timing of revenue BEPAHZIA - REEMHKFRZ U
recognition. Revenue from other sources are analysed in the HBITETREITON ©
table.
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T P T IT
Revenue from contracts with EEEH WS
customers
Timing of revenue recognition W 55 FE R B B — BB B [
- Over time
Hair styling services SRR EHARTS 17,657
Hospitality services B JE e R AE AR 75 118
Property project management services Y18 B E R -
Timing of revenue recognition W R A - R —FE
- At a point in time
Product sales under hair styling services £A!Z:TRBE NERBEE 463
Revenue from other sources R EHAMRREZ W
Rental income LU A 9,097
Interest income from money lending BEMEHA -
Securities investments BHEE 3,688
31,023
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. RVERAR
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BEETIT
Interest charges on bank loans RITEFH SFAX 4,562 6,289
Interest charges on lease HEBBNBERAX
liabilities (note 33(a)) (FF7E33(a)) 756 527

5,318 6,816
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AL (RE) FRAF - ZF RFFER

—EEHF

HK$’000
BT

8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8.
Loss before income tax is arrived at KPS ATE IR NG
after charging/(crediting): (FFA) TFIEEB &5 -
Auditor’s remuneration Z SN &
Depreciation e
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE A&
Right-of-use assets: EREEE
— Leasehold land and buildings —HEL M RIETF
(owned assets) (BBEE)
— Other properties leased for own —HENHEAEMmE
use (under lease arrangement) (HEZHT)
— Motor vehicles (under lease — B (HETHT)
arrangement)
Employee benefit expenses (note 11) BB AR (FIsE11)
Exchange (gain)/loss, net BE N (Was), BT R
Write-off of property, plant and equipment i3 - = KRG
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BERZEZ
plant and equipment g
Rentals received/receivable B EUIRE MER SR
from investment properties HiE X HE#376,0007T
less direct outgoings of —E-NEF
HK$376,000 (2019: HK$528,000) 75 #528,0007T)

Short-term leases expenses EHAERY

1,201

7,084

22,496
(5,547)
6

®)

(3,881)
456

2019
—F-NF
HK$’000
BT

530

604

199

4,908

141
21,331
4,375
16

(8,569)
456
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9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FriEBiEE X

2020 2019
—ECEF —T-AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BVERTRIE — B AR S
— Over-provision in respect of prior years — — A FERBRERE

Deferred tax (note 27) EIEFLIE (M 5E27) 907
907

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax. Hong Kong REBEBEHRZIBENFH - BEFIF
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable ot FE R B FI IR 16.5% R REHE o
profits. No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in the HRAEEAFENBEFELTER
financial statements as the Group did not derive any estimated BAELEFEMAGBFERTETR - W
assessable profits in Hong Kong for the current and prior ERERRIEHEEFNSHBME -
years.
Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations of Macau, the RIEBPIR SR ARG - PARPIFE
subsidiaries incorporated and operated in Macau are liable to RS R 2 BB AR AR 12% (=
Macau Profits Tax at the rate of 12% (2019: 12%). T—NF  12%) 2B EBHRPIFN S

B e
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

loss at applicable tax rate is as follows:

A e T B AR M AR

E-TFEf A= —HIFFE

9. 1SR (#8)
HEAMERFEMNASHATBE T

Loss before income tax

Tax at the statutory rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) in Hong Kong

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue

Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised tax
losses utilised this year

Tax losses not recognised as deferred tax
assets

Over-provision in respect of prior years

Others

Income tax expense

EEZEOEENT ¢

2020 2019

—E-EF s — N

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T ST IT

BRETISTLRIES 18 (23,347) (20,873)
REBLEEBE16.5%(=F

—hE - 16. 5%) FTEIE (3,852) (3,444)
TEMAEEREE CHBA

A2 TNRAIFETZE 229 194

DA S 2 I o 2 1,708 3,636

BERBBAZ RIEHE (1,771) (841)
FAFEAUEFERERHIE

BB E (109)
KERBBELEHBEEEZFIE

518 1,996

BATEREREG -

Hh (525)

Frig i 907
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10. LOSS PER SHARE 10. HMEHE
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of AABEEAEBREREAREBER
the Company is based on the following data: BATEETE
2020 2019
—E-BHF —E—NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Loss for the year REEFE
Loss attributable to owners of the Company 8 A &#E B A JE(L 1B (24,063) (21,234)
2019
—E-NEF
‘000
T &
Number of ordinary shares ZEBRRE
Weighted average number of HEAEEREAEIENS 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of T AR INRE 9 2
calculating basic loss per share 326,077 320,112
For the purposes of calculating diluted loss per share for the BHEBEE T _TFR_ZT—NF
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no adjustment has TZAZE+-RLEFEZEREEES
been made as the exercise of the outstanding share options B BEELRAE  BRITERITRE
has an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share. BRERUEREAEBEAREEY

@0
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

11.

1 8 48 | B 52

Salaries, allowances and staff benefits
Commission

Retirement benefit costs (note 12)
Share option expense (note 29)

ik

¥e o RMRETEMN

BARERRA (M EE12)
FE AR ST (B RE29)

2020 2019
i —F-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
21,486 19,810
434 530

576 522

- 469

21,331

12. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
in Hong Kong, with effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) operated by an approved
trustee in Hong Kong and makes contributions for its eligible
employees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant
income is increased from HK$25,000 to HK$30,000 from
1 June 2014. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

Total contributions paid by the Group into the MPF Scheme
and recognised as an expense during the year, including
contributions for the directors, amounted to HK$576,000
(2019: HK$522,000). No forfeited contribution is available for
reducing the Group’s existing level of contributions (2019: nil).

12.

B A
BIEEBSERHEABLHEAEERA
EHzatEARBREHEE(BE=E
TEFE+_F—BHEER)  AEE
2MBAE B R ZAL BRI
AETE([RBELTE]) T AEH
AEREBIEHMER - RIFREST
g2 EXRHEEESEHENEERR
BURARS%AZAT S - X E A
WA LR ZER - & AEBEKRA
FRE-ZZE—HNFE A —BERELH
7 ¥ 25,0007T 38 £ 7 #30,0007T © 58
BeitalHt TS EE -

AEEZABSHALE (BEX
NESZHR) BEK576,000L(=
T —N4F : B#522,0007T) B R AFE
EHERAEFAS - BEMSNEERATH
BOAREBZRBRIOKFE(ZZE—N
F4E)o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A T B AR M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 ¢ #% —ZE —TF+ - H=+—HIFFZ

13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND 13. FE M E S 12 fs A
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS +
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@ EE=EME
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and ENEENESZHMeBEN
payable to the directors are as follows: S s
Share
Salariesand  Retirement option
Fees allowances benefit costs expense Total
we  HeREE BRARNEE  BRERX @zt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BRTT BT BETT BRI BET T
(note 29)
(KtzE29)
Year ended 31 December HE-B-B%+=H
2020 St-HLEFE
Executive Directors YTES

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel ~ Z8AH L4
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Syhia & BB#i4+
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania K B3/& %+

Independent Non-Executive BI ##178%

Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit FAGRLE
Mr. Lau Pui Wing 2hEEE

Ms. Ho Ting Mei (note) Bz ()

Year ended 31 December HZ-Z-fF+=A

2019 =t-HLEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel ~ ZBAE L4 240 3,720 12 - 3,972
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia & FRfii & + 600 3,024 30 469 4,123
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania K 8R/E & + - 3,127 58 - 3,185
Independent Non-Executive BV FHTES

Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit TABEE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Au Chi Wai Edward (note) [ 78 % 4 (i3E) 60 - - - 60
Mr. Lau Pui Wing EE St 60 - - - 60

1,020 9,871 100 469 11,460




for the year ended 31 December 2020 * # % —

13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

None of the directors waived or has agreed to waive
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join the Group or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Note:  Mr. Au Chi Wai Edward resigned as the independent non-
executive director with effect from 1 January 2020, and Ms.
Ho Ting Mei was appointed as an independent non-executive
director with effect from 1 January 2020.

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group include three (2019: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
note (a) above and the emoluments paid and payable
to the remaining two (2019: two) highest paid individual
are as follows:

AL (SRED) ARAF - —F - FFEER

(b)

Salaries, allowances and e R AEMEF

other benefits
Retirement benefit costs

RIRAEHRA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A e T B AR M AR

EoFFF A= —HIFE

SR DN

E=M= (&)
BE_T-_ZTFR-_FT-NF
TZA=+t—BLFE LE
EERELFAENEENE -

BE_Z-_ZFR-Z-NF
TZA=+—BLFE K&
B R X AHERB 2 T ERE
EER/MAREE L IMARE
iRz BER) - RAERBER 2

f& -

i : EBEELEECBITBILIERT
EE AT =TF—A—H
AN MABBZTEEL
REUEHITES g
TE—F—BEM -

TEBREHFMAL

BE_ZT-_FF+-_A=1t—
BLEFE AEERZRH
MALTBE=2(ZF—-hF:
ZR)EF - AMESEHENEX
M@z oA - 2 REM

BTIRE(CE—NE  WA)
BEoHMALZME0T
2020 2019
—EBEF —F-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
1,709
88

1,797
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A5 A T B AR M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 ¢ #% —ZE —TF+ - H=+—HIFFZ

13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND 13.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
The emoluments of this remaining two (2019: two)
highest paid individual fell within the following bands:

2 <5 S T 44 B e R
+

(%)

(b) IEEBSHFMAL(E)
BTME(ZE—NF: WA)
RRFMALZHMENFAT
#HE

Number of individuals
A
2019
—ZT-NEF

Emolument bands Bl & & &

Nil — HK$1,000,000 T = %%1,000,0007T
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 7 #1,000,001 T2
78 #51,500,0007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 « &7 - E-F#F = H=1+—HIFZF

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  14. W2 - Wz Kkt

Right-of-use assets
hikAE
Owned assets Under lease arrangement
EREE HEZHT
Other Furniture,
Leasehold properties fixtures
[and and leased for Motor Leasehold and office Motor
buildings 0Wn use vehicles improvements  equipment vehicle Total
Bk B
HELHR HENM BEME  RERMOAZ

£7 ARZAMNR e 4 e e it
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000

BT BT BT E%Tm #¥Tn MTn ET

Year ended 31 December 2019 BZ-F-AET-A=t-ALEE

Opening net carrying amount FNERFE 5599 412 14 I 107 - 10014
Reclassifcation from investment RENZENIE

property (note 15(a) (HiH5) 217,600 - - - - - 217600
Additions RE - 8,071 - 1,397 1,089 - 10,993
Wiite-off i - - - ) 1) - (16]
Depreciaton i (199) (4908 (141) (399) (206) - 6,85
Closing net carying amount SREEEA 223,000 7,068 = 1,082 979 = 282,09
At 31 December 2019 RoE-NET-A=T-A
Cost i 223962 11,361 141 3,63 4,306 1276 204,681
Accumulated depreciaion ZirifE (%2 (4,073 (141) 2,603 (3,327) (1,276) (12,382
Net carrying amount ERSE 223,000 7,288 - 1,082 979 - 232,299

Yearended 31 December 200  EZ-F-FET-A=t-ALEE

Opening net carying amount ~~~ SIEEHE 223,000 7,288 232,209
Effect of lease modification REBINEE - 3,795 3,795
Additions HE - 13,351 13734
Write-off i - - 6
Depreciation g (1,201) (7,084 (9,080)
Closing net carrying amount BREASE 291,799 17,350 240,742
At 31 December 2020 R-E-EE{-f=1-A

Cost L 223,962 28,507 4,280 261,589
Accumulated depreciation ZifiE (2,163) (11,157) (3.457) (20,847)

Net carrying amount FERE 201,799 17,350 828 240,742
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 ¢ #% —ZE —TF+ - H=+—HIFFZ

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  14. 2 - W5 Mt (48)

(CONTINUED)

Notes: B3

(a) The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of (@) REEAEERES N EAREERR
underlying asset is as follows: FEDWMT -

2020 2019
—E-ZF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT

Ownership interests in leasehold land and RITERARTIRFIR AT
buildings, carried at depreciated cost with HETH RIEFHHEAEER
remaining lease term of:

— Over 50 years —BBiB504F 216,599 217,600
- Between 10 and 50 years —10FEE50F R 5,200 5,400
Other properties leased for own use, BRITERAIEZHENEERZ
carried at depreciated cost HimE 17,350 7,288
239,149 230,288
(b) As at 31 December 2020, leasehold land and buildings with net carrying (b) RZZEZTF+_A=+—8 " EKEF
amount of HK$216,599,000 (2019: HK$217,600,000) was pledged to {855 % 216,599,0007T (= B — fL4F
secure the banking facilities granted to the Group as further detailed in 78 #217,600,0007T ) KM & L i K 1E
note 26(c). FEERARBETEAEEMNRITREZE
& E— S EFIEENMFE26(C) ©
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. ®&EYE
2020 2019
—E-%F —FNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T BT
Fair value AFE
At 1 January n—HA—H
130,100 353,700
Reclassification to property, ENNBEEVE  BER
plant and equipment (note (a)) BB (H7E(@Q) (217,600)
Disposals (note (b)) & (FFE (o)) (16,000)
Net change in fair value* N EEEFE" 10,000
At 31 December HW+=-—A=+—H 130,100 130,100
S disclosed as “Fair value gain on investment properties” in the * ERIFEE2HEBRARERZ [REWEZA

consolidated statement of comprehensive income. FEUES JHE -
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A e T B AR M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 * #F -~ E-FF - F=1+—HIFZF

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group occupied the
boutique hotel as hotel premises which was reclassified as leasehold
land and buildings of HK$217,600,000 in aggregate within property,
plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed of
a residential property with carrying value of HK$16,000,000 at a
consideration of HK$16,800,000 and thus recognised gain on disposal
of an investment property amounting to HK$800,000.

The Group’s investment properties are measured using a fair value
model and are leased to third parties under leases to earn rental
income, further details of which are set out in note 33(b).

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2020 and 2019 by RAVIA Global Appraisal Advisory Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers, on an open market, existing
use basis.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment properties has
been categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement. All of the fair values of the
investment properties at the end of the reporting period are level 3
recurring fair value measurement, which uses significant unobservable
inputs in arriving at the fair values. There is no transfer between level 1
and level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3 during the current year or
in prior year.

Fair values as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are determined using
direct comparison approach. Fair values are based on recent market
information about prices for comparable properties with significant
adjustments for any differences in the characteristics of the Group’s
properties.

&Y (48)

Wi

(@)

RE-F-NAE+-A=+-AL%E
K AR B 1 PR A O F A E
¥ HREFOBEANE BERR
BTORELRET  BEEE
217,600,0007T °

BHE-_Z-—NLF+=ZA=+—H8L#F
E - AEBEBIRAEHE16,800,0007T
& —JHREE A% % 16,000,000 K
FEME  UTHEIALE—BREMEK
2575 #800,0007T °

FEBMZREAMERARIFEERT L
AERMBREEEERATE=S - UER
He WA BREE-—SHBEHARKZE
33(b) °

AEBZEENEE AR T _TF
E=F—-NAFE+-_A=+—HHEBILE
BREEGEMBEYRKTIHZAER
ARRBABRMBZHEERREESH
BT ©

AEEREMEZATFEAE B8
REZBRAFEER(ERRBEMBRS
ERFEIBRATEE) - RBEHR -
FERENEZATERF-EBRFIE
RFEFE  HEAFERESEAEKR
TABERBARE - RAFEHLE—F
E EF-ERE_EzEALEEE IR
BEEARELE=FE -

—ETFR-ZFT-NF+Z=ZA
T-BZRAFEDNEAERLEAE
o AFENRKIHAEITLEYE
B ZTSERAKRE  URAEEY
¥R EMERELERRE -

[z
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 * #F -~ E-FF - F=1+—HIFFF

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

Details about the valuation inputs are as follows:

15.
FiEE ()

) (&)

BUEY)E ()

HEBHAZRZ FBEHIAT

Valuation Range of
Properties Location Level technique Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs
LS g B flERA A8 A BUE PR REH AR 2 S E
Residential Hong Kong 3 Direct comparison  Discount/Premium on quality and -5% to 5%
properties approach characteristics of properties (2019: -10% to 5%)
FEME BE 3 HELEDE RMEERRFHETE BB  -5%E5%(ZFT—NF ¢
-10%%E5%)
A retail shop Hong Kong 3 Direct comparison  Discount/Premium on quality and -5% to 30%
approach characteristics of properties (2019: 0% to 5%)
—HTEE BE 3 HEEBOE HYEEZREGEHETE GE  -5%Z230%(ZFT—NF :
0%Z%E5%)
A retail shop Macau 3 Direct comparison  Discount/Premium on quality and 0% to 15%
approach characteristics of properties (2019: -5% to 50%)
—MEEE SR 3 HEERBOE HOEEZREHETRE HE  0%R15%(ZT—NEF
-5%%&E50%)
Office premises Macau 3 Direct comparison  Discount/Premium on quality and -15% to 0%
approach characteristics of properties (2019: -15% to 0%)
RYNELY/ES SR 3 HELBOE MOEERRFEEN®ERE  -15%20%(ZT—NEF ¢
-15%%0%)
Residential property  Macau 3 Direct comparison  Discount/Premium on quality and -5% to 10%
approach characteristics of properties (2019: -15% to 5%)
FEME SR 3 HELBOE MYMEERRSEETRE BB 5%E10%(ZZE—NF:

Higher premiums or discounts for differences in the quality and
characteristics of the Group’s properties and the comparables would

result in correspondingly higher or lower fair values.

The fair value measurement is based on the highest and best use of the

investment properties, which does not differ from their actual use.

As at 31 December 2020, certain investment properties with carrying
amount of approximately HK$45,700,000 (2019: HK$46,500,000) were
pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group as further

detailed in note 26(c).

-15%E5%)

RAEEMERATLBNEZEZRE
HERMMEZREERITEMEEN

ERmRBIE 2 ATE -

DA TR R R0 & R
RIS - MEAERAALFER -

©) R-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—8 " FEE
49 578%45,700,00070( ZF—NEF + B
#46,500,0007T) 2 & TR EMEBIER
AEBERRITEEZEF - B@EE—
SEEBHEHN M E26(0) ©
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 « &7 - E-F#F = H=1+—HIFZF

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 16. & -FEFFA A 2 HE A
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE B &
INCOME

2020 2019
—EEHF —ET-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, W&# 2 FHRARE -

at fair value RAFE 9,298
Financial assets at FVOCI represents listed equity investments BEAVEFAEMEZAKAZHEKE
in Hong Kong, which are held for long-term and are EERAFEEEEBIEENEZRE
non-trading in nature. Bz ETRARE -

Fair values of these listed equity investments have been ZELEMRAETEEZAFED T
measured as described in note 36.1(iv). 2 FEBERNMTEESS. (V) °
17. INVENTORIES 17. i+ &

2019

—E-EF —T-NEF

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Consumable stocks ARAGFE 83 85
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in BEAEE 815,000 (ZE—NF
cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted B EE710,0007L ) 2 T ER AR B
to HK$815,000 (2019: HK$710,000). X Wt ABZE_T_TF+_A

=t BLEFEZHEKRAN -
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18. #AFEFHARIZ B E
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS EE

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT

Listed equity investments held for trading, #H{EE & 2 FHIRAIKRE -

at fair value RANFE 88,836
Financial assets at FVTPL represents listed equity investments AT ETABS VB EEERLE AN
held for trading, at fair value. FEFAEFIEEE 2 LRTIEE o
The fair value of the listed equity investments have been ZEFTTRAKREZAFEED Fit
measured as described in note 36.1(iv). = FFBEERHIFEES6.1(v)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 19. &3 -A,&ﬁﬂmﬁf&qﬁﬁﬁ%( N/
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS S A R
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ZT-hE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T ST IT
Trade receivables = E AR 123 -
Other receivables, deposits and HmBEWERR - ek
prepayments FE FRIB 8,054 4,087
8,177 4,087
In general, no credit period is granted for its customers due to —mE AXAEEMNERED - B

the Group’s business nature. ERAASEBRFPRHEER-
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20.

21.
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 ¢ #Z —ZE -~ TF+ - =+—HIFFZ

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 19. &R HM BRI ~ #i &
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS A AT ZIE (7))
(CONTINUED)
The ageing analysis (based on invoice date) of the trade RMERR - LERKERR(FKRER
receivables, net of loss allowance, at the end of the reporting BB 2 BREEDITRBEZAE)MT ¢
period is as follows:
2020 2019
g Jemg 222 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T BT T
0-30 days 0&E30H =
31-60 days 31£E60H -
61-90 days 61290H -
More than 90 days %90H -
No loss allowance was provided for the year ended 31 AR BEERPRERH T EZEGEZTE
December 2020 (2019: nil) as there has not been a significant BANE  WEE—_Z-_ZTF+_-A4
change in credit quality based on historical experience. The =t+—BItFETETIRSEREE (=
Group determined that there were no significant financial T—NF:E) KREBETMAEE
impact arising from ECLs model under HKFRS 9 for all trade ENEMEWETIARIZESIRERS
and other receivables and deposits. The Group does not hold B IR EER|F R T BRI E R
any collateral over these balances. RAWBENEANBEE - N&EE
W Z S AT B (KR e
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO 20. MEUTREAS JE £ RO ME i 3 TH
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable ZEDNHFEAEEM 2B RABER
on demand. ERIFEE
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 21. CHEHERITA

Pledged bank deposits at the end of the reporting period
represent time deposits which are denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) with original maturity periods of one year (2019: 5
months). The deposits earn interest at fixed rates ranging
from 2.20% to 2.60% per annum (2019: 2.60% to 2.80% per
annum) and have been pledged to secure certain banking
facilities granted by a bank (note 26(c)).

REER 2 BRIFRITFR - FBA
ARE(TARE DHEZEHEHR
RAFHEENBEAE—F(ZT—NLF .
5MA) - ZEFREN F2.20% =
2.60%(—ZE—HE  2.60%%2.80%)
METFEMNEBRRFE - B2 MHFEK
o IS —HEIRITIRE 2 B T RIT
BE (FsE26(c)) °
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22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances include the following: %%@?ELAT%IE
2019
—E-EF —ZT-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT AT IT
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHEES 23,964 21,866
Short-term bank deposit MHARTTIE 2,361 =
Cash and bank balances B4 RiR1TES 26,325 21,866

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are made for
periods depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time
deposit rates. The directors consider that the fair values of
the short-term deposits are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because of the short maturity period.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had short-term time
deposit amounting to RMB1,990,000, which had original
maturity of three months and earned interest income at interest
rate at 2.35% per annum. The amount of short-term time
deposit as of 31 December 2020 was included in “cash and
bank balances”.

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank balances
denominated in RMB amounted to HK$2,383,000 (2019:
HK$2,223,000).

RITAESRBARTERIN RN ZE
MEFE - BHMEMERZHR - T3
BEREBZABREFLME @ K
EEHEMERMERERFAE - @R
RHFERRNERAIE  RERR
HAVEERAETEERNER

NZE_TF+ZA=+—H " &&%
E /52 HE B E A A R #1,990,000
JT J?\,Hﬂﬁﬁz%_mﬂ&fru%u&)\&i
FME23B%FTE - R_T_TF+ =
A=+—8 " %ﬁ;ﬁmﬂ;ﬁﬁ TEBER
[IRE& RIRITHERR] -

R|EHR  UWAREAEZEE R
RITH % A B 23830001 (ZF
— N4 : B#2,223,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
;\/]‘/\EZ"T%ﬁ?(%%I}HHE

for the year ended 31 December 2020 « &7 - E-F#F = H=1+—HIFZF

23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. EEMEATIRR
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis (based REEHR REBZEEEMNER
on invoice date) of the Group’s trade payables is as follows: ZEROMRBEERNT :
2020 2019
HK$ 000 HK$’000
BET T ST IT
0-30 days 0£30H 139 112
31-60 days 31%£60H 50 25
137
24. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER 24. JEATBEHRRIE
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and no fixed term FRREAEERN REREETEE
of repayment. SKARBR o
25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. BRHAE
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ook e
Contract liabilities arising from: SHEERYE :
Property project management services VI8 B BB RE 450
Hospitality services R JE K SR AR 7S -

450
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

23.

CEON=EEAE))

The movement in contract liabilities is as follows: SHBENEHOT

2020 2019

—E-%5F —TNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BEETIT

At 1 January n—HA—H 450 -

Revenue recognised during the year FARERH WS (450) -
Increase in contract liabilities as a result  FFLYEIE B 18RS TE U
of billing in advance of property project FIEMEWAS LB EE M

management service works 450

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of & gt ik & & 2 13 IR 75 78 W sk 18
billing in advance of hospitality services & EA 4 & &N -
At 31 December R+-A=+—8H 450

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities are as follows:

Property project management works

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due upon from the
date of billing. The Group’s property management contracts
include payment schedules which require stage payments over
the construction period once milestones are reached. When
discrepancies arise between the milestone payments and
the Group’s assessment of the stage of completion, contract
liabilities can arise.

Hospitality services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and advances are normally required before
rendering services. Hospitality service contracts are for periods
of one year or less, or are billed based on the time incurred.

TEANABSRZ —RNFKGEHRM
S
Y% TE B EE RS

BAOBEREERRER MR ERK -
NHRBFEEAZEHEDS - A&
BOMEERRNERNTERE
HER-BEKERE  FEREL
HARR 73 BAfT 3K o an AR R T R
EHERERNFHEZALREER -
ATeEELERNRE -

e JE B R AR A%
BHOBERERRERMERK - MK
BEEREHRBAEERN - K/E
EFERBEORI—FHAT - A
RBEERREWRE -
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED) 26. SATEE CHHAH)
2020 2019
“EEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT
Current liabilities nEBAE
Portion of bank loans due for repayment ZBR—FEREEBZIRITERZ
within one year 281 157,706 157,680
Portion of bank loans due for repayment B8R ERERIGRZ AR
after one year which contain —FREBZRITERZ
a repayment on demand clause B0 38,100 39,270
195,806 196,950
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Bank loans due for repayment after HAR—FREEBZRITER
one year 8,565 8,987
204,371 205,937
The bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost. None of IRITEEREBHERATE - 2RSS
the portion of bank loans due for repayment after one year RERESRI(MELSEARHA
which contain a repayment on demand clause (and therefore BIZARN—FRERBZERITERNHD
classified as current liability) is expected to be settled within FEEAE R —FREE -

one year.
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED) 26. SMATHEE (CHIKH) ()
(CONTINUED)
The analysis of the Group’s bank borrowings by scheduled REBEZIRITEBIRTEIEE B BH#
repayment is as follows: T2
2020 2019
S —FNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Portion of bank loan due for repayment ~ R—ERNF|HEE ZRTER
within one year ZEMn 157,706 157,680
Portion of bank loans due for repayment A —E & 5| BiEIE 2 IRITE
after one year (note (a)) 2515 (FizE@))
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMTR 2,599 2,574
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFRA 35,353 36,284
After 5 years RF& 8,713 9,399
204,371 205,937
Notes: BT
(@) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set (a) ZERERE D RBEE R B HEES 2
out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on EEE AN E B TR ERER
demand clause. 1&RK ?Z%“ °
(o) The Group’s bank borrowings as at the end of the reporting period, (o) » ﬁﬁi%* REBZRITEE(HUB
all denominated in HK$, bear interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered EHE) - DRIRBARITAERE(E
Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1.0% to 1.4% or prime rate minus 2.95% to 3.00% BIRITRIZERE D) NFEL1.0%E1.4%
(2019: HIBOR plus 1.0% to 1.4% or prime rate minus 2.95% to 3.00%) IR R BB EFF £2.95% F3.00%
per annum. The interest rates of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31 (ZZ—NF : BEBRITRAERENFE
December 2020 ranged from 1.28% to 2.25% (2019: 2.25% to 4.09%) BA1.0%E1.4% IR RHEE N EFH2.95%
per annum. F3.00%)5tB - R=ZZE=TF+=A
=+—8" $%|§Zfﬂfﬂﬁi§¢ﬂ+u
F1.28%%£2.25%( —ZT—NLF : 2.25%
£4.09%) °
() The Group’s bank borrowings and banking facilities are secured by () AEFZRITEERBITRE HUKRE

certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and bank deposits with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$216,599,000 (2019: 217,600,000), HK$45,700,000 (2019:
HK$46,500,000) and HK$92,469,000 (2019: HK$86,062,000)
respectively, also corporate guarantee given by the Company to the
extent of HK$204,371,000 (2019: HK$205,937,000).

B 5 TAREE S 54978 %216,599,0007T
(ZZ—N4F : #%217,600,0007T)
7 ¥ 45,700,000 T (ZF— NF : B
46,500,0007T ) & 7% #92,469,0007T (=
T—NF - #%86,062,0007T) 2 ME
B Rt - BEMERRITER -
RAREWEH 2 EBR &7 ¥204,371,000
TL(ZZE—NF : B¥205,937,0007T) 2
D RERIEE R o
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27.

Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and their
movements during the current and prior years are as follows:

HESE R IR
B R E E ROBIEF R 2R
EHEREREBHZ FEMT -

Fair value
Accelerated changes of
tax Tax investment
depreciation losses properties Total
InEBLE REWMERZ
ik BEBRE LAREED &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BETT
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-hF—H—H 2,999 (2,064) 2,408 3,343
Charged to profit or loss RIEZEF N Z FE
(note 9) (Pt#E9) 691 = 216 907
At 31 December 2019 and R =-ZT—AF
1 January 2020 +-A=+t—-HR
—E-TF—H—H (2,064)
Charged to profit or loss RIBEP MR 2508
(note 9) (Ft3E9) 2,064
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZH
+t=A=+-H

At 31 December 2020, the Group had tax losses of
approximately HK$351,693,000 (2019: HK$314,316,000). At
31 December 2019, a deferred tax asset of HK$2,064,000
was recognised in respect of tax losses of approximately
HK$12,512,000. It was reversed in the current year as it
is uncertain whether future taxable profit will be available
for utilising the tax losses of the Group. Under current tax
legislation, the tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

NR-ZBE-_TE+-_A=+—0 K&
B 2 i TEE 18 49 /8 #351,693,0007T
—E— N #EM314,316,0007T) °
R-Z—-AE+-_A=+—B 2%
TRIBEIB A B 112,512,000 T HERIE
IEFRIEE A #2,064,0007T ° AR
BEREEARGERD R AT HAES
FRAMEAEBE RERAFEED -
BIE B ATz FIEA G - FiIE &8 Al &
PREAAEE o
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28. SHARE CAPITAL

28. AR

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.2 each
EREEEK0.2T
ZEBR
Number of
shares

RBE

Authorised:
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2020

EE

R-_ZE—hF—H—H"
—E-NF+=-A=+—H
F—E-_FF+_A

Issue and fully paid:

At 1 January 2019

Share issued under exercise of share
options (note 29)

=+—H 2,000,000,000
ERITERAR:
RZFE—-hF—H—H 309,705,597
ITIF AR R T 2 iR 1D

(Bi7£29) 16,371,826

At 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2020

RZE—hFE+=ZA=+—H
N—E-_FTF+ A
=+—A 326,077,423

Nominal
value
HE
HK$’000
BT T

400,000
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

A share option scheme (the “Existing Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 22 May 2009 and 30
May 2019 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to the participants who have contributed to the Group
and encouraging participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Upon the expiry of
the Existing Share Option Scheme on 21 May 2019, no further
option can be offered thereunder but any options granted prior
to such expiry but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid
and exercisable. A new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company pursuant to
a resolution passed at the annual general meeting held on 30
May 2019. Under the New Share Option Scheme, the board of
directors may, at its discretion, offer to directors, employees of
any member of the Group, any advisors and service providers
of any member of the Group, options to subscribe for shares
in the Company at a price not less than the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant
of the options; and (i) the nominal value of a share. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
the options by each of the relevant grantees. The options vest
on the condition that the grantee is a participant of the New
Share Option Scheme from the date of options grant to the
commencement date of the exercisable period of the options
and the participant is not required to achieve any performance
targets before any share options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme can be exercised.

29.

A5 A B R M R

EoFF A=t ALEE

DA A S A 2 4B

$ m*ﬁﬁﬁégfggjl$iiﬂ:?#:
BERE-_ZE—AFRA=ZTHETZRKR
HBEFARE EBAAZERRMNER
B ([ BHMIREE])  %E
BRETS 2 ETZE N A BE K IEE
HASEELEB c28E - URE
B2EEARNAFRERE BT
BB OIRSARARERDZEE -
REBEREFENR_Z—LFRA
Z+—HEH TEBRERERD
R B AR 4 - ME(E{m] 70 B HA B 5% HH
mARITHECIBREREES IR T
T - ARRIRER=_Z—NLFHA
“+HBTZRRAFRAS BB
R AN B AR B ([ 3 AR 4
FrE]) - RIBFERESS - ES
grRBRAEEERKE AR ZE
= BB URAEEEHEKE QR
ZTEETEJEEF’DEJ&HW&T Fg?ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁg
LARRHE A R AR REE K TER
Tﬂi%$2%m% O$27hh\
REOBEBREZ BEB AT WmE : (i)
BROREZRIEREEANAFER
SEEBRZFHRTE - Kii) ik
DEE - SIEEEABEABREMNZD
2R INEB1ITZREAR
B - WBREEBGRERERANE
REREBHZEERETEHRBZ
BAEIEMERE  BAEBEHMERER
Blz2EA - MBEAEARNBRER
BT R 2 B AR AT 1T
FRIEREANEEER -
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29. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 29.

(CONTINUED)
Movements of the share options during the year and their
weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

2020
—g-%f

— i r—

Number of
options
B

4=

Outstanding at 1 January b=l =R SEE I 12,548,000
Granted [mE3s =
Exercised 2T =

Outstanding at 31 December R+ —-HA=+—H
i ARITER 12,548,000

Exercisable at 31 December R+=—A=+—H
A{THE 12,548,000

No share options were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The weighted average share price of the Company on the date
of exercise of the options during 2019 was HK$0.295.

AR A7 S A 2 il 1

5)

RF AR 2 B8 M H T 91T

FEEMT :
2019
—E-hF

Weighted Weighted
average average
) Gl BN Number of exercise
price options price
A5 i A e hniEFH
TEE #H 1T E
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Wkl 25,659,826 0.418
— | 3,260,000 0.250
—(16,371,826) 0.310
12,548,000 0.515
12,548,000 0.515

BEERERNEE_ZE_ZF+_A

=+ —HLEFERETRE -

R-F-NFTEREREEHARRA
DRI B0 BA% 8 #0.2957T »
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 29. VIBEAR AT 2 Wi fE (48)
(CONTINUED)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RMEARZRITEBERECITEE
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as RATHEEMT -

follows:

Number of Exercise

options price Exercise period
BREHAE TEE 1TEH
HKS$
BT
2020 and 2019 —BCRER
—B-NE
Granted on R-ZT—RF 3,096,000 0.732 14 Sept 2016 — 13 Sept 2026
14 Sept 2016 NA+THBEERY —E-RFAATHAEE
—EZRXFNATZ=H
Granted on RZE—+F 3,096,000 0.698 19 Sept 2017 — 18 Sept 2027
19 Sept 2017 NA+THABEE “E—+tFAATIEZE
—EtEFNA+NH
Granted on R-_ZE—N\F 3,096,000 0.395 3 Oct 2018 — 2 Oct 2028
3 Oct 2018 +A=ZB&H —E-\Ft+A=RZE
—E-N\F+HAZH
Granted on RZE—NF 3,260,000 0.250 16 Oct 2019 — 15 Oct 2029
16 Oct 2019 +RATRBEHEH —E-AFTA+TARBZE
—E-AF+ATEA
The options outstanding as at 31 December 2020 had a AITEBERER_ZTE_ZF+_HA
weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.3 years (2019: =t+—HZMEFHHB TS LB E

8.3 years). RTIF(ZE—NF :83F) -
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29. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
(CONTINUED)

The share options granted on 16 October 2019 have had
determined using Binomial option pricing model by RAVIA
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, independent professional
valuers at the date of grant. The following were the key inputs

to the model used:

29.

DAL S A 2 A48 (A1)

RZB-NF+ATRERLZEBR
REER B L B E R I SR IR K
AERDANEZ L HHAKA - BAH
BEBRAEE UTH/ZEEBER
FERZEREARE

Grant date =k
Exercise price TEE
Expected life of share options AR TR F
Early exercise behavior REITETR
Dividend yield & B =
Risk-free interest rate 1 3 b A1) 2
Expected volatility TEHR R R

Expected volatility, determined based on a statistical analysis
of daily share prices over the last five years, and early exercise
behavior and expected life of share options, determined based
on the market research data and historical data respectively,

may not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The fair value of the share options granted in 2019 was
approximately HK$469,000 which had been recognised as
share option expense (note 11) with the corresponding balance
credited to the share option reserve in 2019. No liabilities
were recognised as these were all equity-settled share-based

payment transactions.

16 October 2019
T—NF
+A+7<H

HK$0.250
B #£0.2507T

1.56%
59.91%

REBEDAFABARERTERD
EE < AHKE - A RDRES
SMRABBEIEEBIBEEE ZIRET
EITREBRERTFY - REEX

—NEBREZEREZ AFELY
B8 469,0007T © B R A B R E
X (MiE11) - BEZEHRERZE
—NEFFTABRERE - EEﬁA*ﬁﬁ%/*
FUEBUNEREE 2RO RZ S
WA EIEREE -
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30. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 30.

e F BB IR DL R

2020 2019
—BCEF —FE-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M BET T BEETIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZRE 49,800 49,800
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments E 1th & U BR Zk K T8 1~ 3018 1,917 680
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE UL BT B A B FR 3B 251,986 257,508
Pledged bank deposits BIRIRIRITIF K 92,469 86,062
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHER 17,670 8,076
364,042 352,326
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H b AT AR R FEET 5B 782 690
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEA B B A B FRIE 120,532 120,556
Amount due to a shareholder FE —BIRERFIR 15,000 -
136,314 121,246
Net current assets REBEEFE 227,728 231,080
Net assets EEFE 277,528 280,880
EQUITY s
Share capital R& 2R 28 65,215 65,215
Reserves HE &2 212,313 215,665
Total equity ey R 277,528 280,880
On behalf of the directors RERES

Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel
BRR
Director

EF

Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania
KEAE
Director

EF
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31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. KBRS
As at 31 December 2020, the Company had direct and indirect N-E-_FTE+-_A=+—8 ' AN
interests in the following subsidiaries: FEETYMB AR B LR
iy
Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
LN
AR L B K FEEKR e ER
AR AR EAER Fd-ik ERITRAFHE 2B
Held directly:
EERE:
Century Legend Investments British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 63,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong US$0.01 each
tHEEEREBRAT RBREAES  BRAR  REBLSRALR SRABCOIETL 100%
63,0000 & &A%
Century Legend Management ~ Hong Kong, Provision of properties 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited limited liability company management services in - of HK$1,000,000
Hong Kong
HEREERBRAR BA BRRA REBRENFERRYE %%1,000,0007T2 100%
1,000,000/% & & %
Century Legend Entertainment  British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of US$1 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
R FREBR AR HERAHS  ARRE REBUSRERK 1ET2IRE R 100%
CL Property Investments Hong Kong, Investment holding in 1 ordinary shares of HK$1 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong

tEEXREBRAR BA ARRA REALFREER BRItz IREBR 100%
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Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
YN
AR S 3t B K EXE 394 FiisE i
AR EH EANER gk ERITRAFE AR
Held indirectly:
BiERs
Century Legend Finance Hong Kong, Provision of commercial 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited limited liability company and personal loans in of HK$10,000,000
Hong Kong
HERRMEBRAF BB ARRDA REBREEER #1%10,000,0007T 2 100%
MAER 10,000,0000% & A%
Century Legend Strategic Hong Kong, Investment holding and 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Investments Limited limited liability company trading securities in of HK$10,000,000;
Hong Kong 5,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares™ of
HK$5,000,000
HEEERRREBRAR BE BRAA NEBNRERERKRR  #%10,000,0007T2 100%
BEEHR 10,000,000/ Zi@MR : B
5,000,0007T 2 5,000,0008%
EREEELTKRN"
EA Interior Contracting Limited  Hong Kong, Provision of interior 100 ordinary shares of 100%
limited liability company and property project HK$100
management service
EA Interior Contracting Limited ~ &75 + AR A RUEZARMEFEEEE  BK1007.21000 L Bk 100%
R
CL Entertainment Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding and 10,000 ordinary shares of 100%
limited liability company property investment in HK$10,000
Macau
HRREFH A BE BRRA BPEEREERR  A%10,000T2 100%
%%&ﬁ 10,0008 & AR
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31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
VYN
AR S it B K FEERR JES2p 57
AR LB EANER gk ERITRAFHE 2B
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BiEREs (@)
Headquarters Limited Hong Kong, Operation of a hair salon 150,000 ordinary shares of 58%
limited liability company under the brand name HK$3,827,496
of “Headquarters” in
Hong Kong
BRBERAF BA BRRA WEBAmE 7#5#:3,827,496 L2 58%
[Headquarters IR &£ HE 150,000/ & @k
Century Legend Properties Hong Kong, Investment holding, 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
Limited limited liability company property investments and
trading securities in
Hong Kong
iR ERRAR B ARADA REBREREER BT ARG ER 100%
Simple Way Limited Hong Kong, Inactive 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
limited liability company
HBARRAE &% BRRA TEZX BT IR EBR 100%
Max Rise Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong, Investment holding and 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
limited liability company property investments in
Hong Kong
IBERERR AR B BRAA REBREREERE BB ITIREER 100%
NERE
Hong Kong Macau Travel Hong Kong, Provision of travel agency 500,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited limited liability company services in Hong Kong HK$500,000
BRIKERR AR B BRAA REBRMMRTIRSE  #%500,0007T2 100%

500,0000% & &%
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 31.

(CONTINUED)

Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
RRH
AR R FEEER FisaRER
AR EH EANER BE ERTRAFE ZBA
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BERE (&)
Homy Group Plus Limited Hong Kong, Provision of hospitality 10,000 Ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company Service HK$10,000
Homy Group Plus Limited B ARRDA RALIRIE KRR 7#%10,0007T.2 70%
10,0008 & i@k
HRL Limited Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 Ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$100
HRL Limited B8 ARADA RARERR 100702 10088 LBk 70%
Silver Billion Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, Inactive 1 ordinary share of HK$1 70%
(note) limited liability company
Silver Billion Enterprises Limited &7 * BEA Tmex BT 2 1IRE AR 70%
(FzE)
Full Wave Development Limited Hong Kong, Provision of hospitality 1 ordinary share of 70%
(note) limited liability company Service HK$1
Full Wave Development Limited &5 * ER A RS R AR BT AR B 70%
(FsE)
HGNP One Limited (note) Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP One Limited ( fif3F) B ARRA FRIRERR BREEAS1TL 70%
100 & B
HGNP Plus Limited (note) Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP Plus Limited (Fii &) B - BRAT] RAREER BREEES 1T 70%

10008 E @R
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31.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
RRAH
M L B K TEXER Fifs AR
AR EH EANER Pk BRITRAFE AR
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BERE (&)
HGNP Three Limited (note) Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP Three Limited (Ff3E) B ARRDA RAKEER BREEES 1T 70%
100 E Rk
HGNP Four Limited (note) Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP Four Limited (¥zt) BA BRRA RAKSER BREEES 1T 70%
100 & Ak
HGNP Six Limited (note) Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP Six Limited (FizE) BA BRRA RRRERR BREBESKIT 70%
1008 & EAk
Macau Mesquita Homy Inn Macau, Inactive Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) 42%
Limited limited liability company 25,000
REFEEEXEMERAR R BRAA TEER P (DR 1)25,0007T 42%
Century Legend Properties Macau, Investment holding in MOP25,000 100%
(Macau) Limited limited liability company Macau
i ggumECRM)ARDR  RF - ARAA REFREREER JRPI#25,0007T 100%
CL San Kin Yip Property Macau, Property investments in -~ MOP25,000 100%
Investment Limited limited liability company Macau
HEFRENEREBRAR  RF ARAA REFIRENERE JBPI#25,0007T 100%
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

A5 A B R M R

EoFF A=t ALEE

Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
VYN
a1 AR 32 3t B I TEEBR FisaRER
AR EH EANER BE ERTRAFE ZBA
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BERE (&)
CL MLO12 Property Investment  Macau, Property investmentsin -~ MOP25,000 100%
Limited limited liability company Macau
HEMLOIZNEREBRAR R BRAA REFIRENERE JRPI#25,0007T 100%
CL Pawn, Watch & Jewellery Macau, Inactive MOP25,000 100%
Limited limited liability company
R RERAEERAR B BRAR Tmex JRPIH25,0007T 100%

The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights

to dividends

or to participate in any distribution in winding up. They carry no rights to

receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting.

Note:
ended 31 December 2020.

These subsidiaries were newly established or invested during the year

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year (2019: nil).

E“E%ﬁLhPEWLH%ﬁ%k
CNESEFEMEA D EMER -
&?ﬁ%&%&ﬁ%%k@@%~ﬁm
FBEMBRRAGIRBRERE LRE -

Mk : ZEMBRRIDIREBEEZ=
A=+—HIEFERNTHE

T -THFE+
MHIRE o

BENE QBN FERS BITEAER
EH(ZT-NFE) -
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HE T -_THF+-F=1—HIFE

Group

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature of the reserves is as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Capital reserve
Capital reserve of the Group represents:

(i) the difference between the nominal value of
share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal value of the share capital and the share
premium accounts of those companies forming
the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
in 1993; and

(if) the reduction in issued share capital arising from
the cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of
HK$0.09 on each share of HK$0.1 in issue in
2001.

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve comprises to the fair value gain on
transferred from self-occupied property to investment
property in 2012.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve represents the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investment designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period.

Share option reserve
Share option reserve has been set up in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 3.17.

REHE
AEERAEERBEFEZFH#ESR
BREH IR E B RTIR -

fEzEENT -
(a) EXfE
AEBZEXRHERE

(b)

(c)

(d)

(i) ARABEBRITHRAEE
HEKRAEBZZER
ARE-NN=F&H
BEH 2 BAREE RS
HERCER &

(ii) AR AEHE
TRAFD - HZFF
—FEBTRMHZER
A B 0.1 7T BlRS
#0.097T °

Bt
EHERAER T4
AAENEBRERENEND
T U3 -

BAFEFARMBEEREA
M BEERE
BAFEFARMEEREAZ
MHEEERBERRE RS
BB BM B HREERFRA
THRERAFEFAEGLEZE
WA BHEREZ A FERG

FREY -
B 25 A

IR ED RBEM EIATH
B} GRTRRL ©
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32. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 32. ftifh (48)
Company b N/NE]
Share Contributed Share option Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
R4 ME BEaRy BRERE EG )1 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT AETT BT BT BETT
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—NF—H—H 153,481 213,978 5,586 (157,244) 215,801
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (2,406) (2,406)
Share option granted (note 29) 2 % HEERk#E (Ff3520) - = 469 = 469
Share option exercised (note 29) B 1T{# 8 Ik (i 329) 4,746 = (2,945) = 1,801

At 31 December 2019 and RW-ZE-AE+=A

1 January 2020 =+-AR-ZE-Ef
—-HB—H 158,227
Loss for the year KEEER =
At 31 December 2020 R-BE-_FE+-H
=+—-H 158,227

Contributed surplus of the Company represents:

(i) the difference between the underlying net tangible
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company and
the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
at the time of the group reorganisation referred to
above; and

(if) the reduction in issued share capital arising from the
cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.09 on
each share of HK$0.1 in issue in 2001.

213,978

213,978

(159,650) 215,665
(3,352) (3,352)

3,110 (163,002) 212,313

ARAZ EMEBIE

(i)

(i

ARBPTBERB AR ZHEH
BREEFBEEARAR Lt
SEEARZDBITROEE
ZEE R

AHBERAEHE BRITHRA
WD T -FEHEITR
2 BREEEEC.1TTHHIE
75 #0.097T °
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33. LEASES 33. HE
(a) The Group as lessee (@) FEEEREABEA
Nature of leasing activities HEXKEHE
The Group leases a number of properties in the Hong KEBREEHEZ @AY E
Kong, including office premises, hostel premises and BEHEENRAZTYE K
hair salon from which it operates. All the periodic rent is EMENERNR - HHRAMA
fixed over the lease term. EHHESHAEEE -
The Group also leases certain motor vehicles for which AEETHEEETAE - HHE
rental is fixed over the lease terms. SRBEHABEE -
Lease liabilities HEAE
Other Motor
properties vehicles Total
Hh RE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEET T BEETIT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF
—A—H 4,125 405 4,530
Additions NE 8,071 - 8,071
Interest expense (note 7) ) BEF (MsE7) 488 39 527
Lease payments HMERIE (5,427) (327) (5,754)
At 31 December 2019 and H=-T—NF
1 January 2020 +=-—A=+—H
;T F
—H—H 7,257 7,374
Additions NE 13,351 13,351
Effect of lease modification THEEN ~ § 2 3,795 3,795
Interest expense (note 7) FERZ (M3E7) 4 756
Lease payments MERIE (6,406) (6,538)
At 31 December 2020 RZZBEE2F
+=-—A=+—8
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33. LEASES (CONTINUED) 33. & ()
(@) The Group as lessee (Continued) (a) AEEEHEEBAE)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HEEE(E)
Future lease payments are due as follows: RERBEMNREBABEROT :

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
RIEBERE FIE BRE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
AT T BT T BT T

As at 31 December 2020 R=-ZT=-ZfF

+=B=+—H
Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth year, HE-FZERENR
inclusive (BRMFBEEN)

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
KA ERIE S A
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BETIT BETT

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZT—h4E

+=-A=+—8
Within one year —F R 4,714 (295) 4,419
In the second to fifth year, SE_-_EZERERN
inclusive (HEEMFBIEEA) 3,037 (82) 2,955

7,751 377) 7,374

163



164

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A T B AR M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 ¢ #% —ZE —TF+ - H=+—HIFFZ

33. LEASES (CONTINUED)

(b)

The Group as lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
15) under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years
(2019: one to four years). At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

(b)

Within one year THB—F

After one year but within two years  #BiE—FE B N BEME

After two years but within three years #Bi8 M E 18 1838 = 4

After three years but within four iR = FETBBMNE
years

33. HHE (#)

AEEEREHEA
AEERBEEEHELELA
HIEEWME(ME15) HEZ
HENT—ZEONFE(ZF— AN
F—EWF) - RREHRK -
RIF R TS 2 7N Al s 8
EHE  AEETRUTEH
B ER AR REBERER
BT

2020 2019

S —FNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T AT T

3,168 4,127
1,577 2,726
300 1,342

300

8,495
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34. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 34. HEHB AT ERMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: METHELANBBHERNOT :
Amount
due to Bank Lease
a shareholder borrowings liabilities
EN—%
BRME RITEE HESE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT AT BETT
(Note 24) (Note 26) (Note 33)
(KiE24) (Pit7E26) (P5E33)
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—A—H - 205,767 4,530
Changes from cash flows: Renmegy
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEEMEHIE = 194,602 =
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE = (194,432) -
Loan interest paid BAEHHMNE = (6,289) -
Capital element of lease payment REFRZERER - = (5,227)
Interest element of lease payment BEFRZFEHM = = (627)
Total changes from financing cash flows: BER&MEE S)1A%E : - 6,119 (5,754)
Other changes: Hip
Increase in lease liabilities from FINHEE
entering into new leases HEAEEM = = 8,071
Interest expense (note 7) Fl BRI (fiFE7) - 6,289 527
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NF+-A=+—H
at 1 January 2020 hZZ-_ZF—[—H 205,937
Changes from cash flows: Rengg
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (1,566) =
Loan interest paid BERERF S (4,562) =
Capital element of lease payment REFRZEREM - (5,782)
Interest element of lease payment BEMRZF LM = (756)
Advance from a shareholder KE—BBREZEK = =
Total changes from financing REREREFHEE -
cash flows: (6,128) (6,538)
Other changes: Hi e :
Increase in lease liabilities from AUFHECHERE
entering into new leases 2 =
Effect of lease modification HEBYFTE =
Interest expense (note 7) FIEREZ (MzE7) 4,562

At 31 December 2020 N-Z-ZF+-fF=+—H 204,371
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following significant transactions with related parties during the
year:

(@) Compensation of key management personnel
The directors are of the opinion that the key
management personnel are the directors of the
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out in
note 13(a), and certain highest paid employees whose
remunerations are set out in note 13(b).

(b) Operating lease arrangements

RN '
BREHBRRAMBEREZRS
RAE#Ho - ERNEEIFEBEAL
ETTHEARS

(@) FEEBAEZHMH
EERE TEEBEABRNLX
RRAZEBERETHE=THNE
B FEzHFHFBIRER
FEE13(a) M EE13(b) °

(b) EEHEZRH

Rental expenses for MUATRRZMAE S
a motor vehicle paid to M
— Smiley & Bee Limited —Smiley & Bee Limited
— Complex Investments Limited —BRBREERAA
Rental income received from M LAT 2 R 2 A 2 WA

- Po Lee Securities Limited —BRFEEFR AR

2020 2019
—B-%F —F-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT ok
240

216

850
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35.
(CONTINUED)
(c) Others

2020 2019
—EEHF —ET-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

Company secretary service income A LA T2 BJUE 2 A B E

received from BRASUTA

- Po Lee Securities Limited —BESFBRAA] 5

— Raise Success Limited —Raise Success Limited 52

Broker fee paid to MA TR N 2 &85

- Po Lee Securities Limited —BANESFBRAF 8
These arrangements are mutually agreed by the Group ZELTHRAEB A TEFRE
and the contracting parties. BETE °
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the beneficial X Y| K& B Smiley & Bee
shareholder and director of Smiley & Bee Limited. LimitedZ B R NESE -
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel and Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen BEECHRRALEREREmZEAER
Sylvia, director, are the beneficial shareholder and BREEBRAFIZEZHRENES -
director of Complex Investments Limited.
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the director of EEOPMRAEEASENBEERA A
Po Lee Securities Limited. LEE o
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the beneficial E £ 2 M| K %k & & Raise Success

trustee and director of Raise Success Limited. LimitedZ B XEARES °
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30.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 36. W& E RSB A FHEHE &
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks, mainly REHEREZERKERE : TE2AH
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk SRR (BIEINER R - FXE R R
and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s ZEEEK)  EERRERHESE
overall risk management focuses on unpredictability of financial e REBHAERBREEETRS
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on BT 35 B9 AN A FERE - 3 0 SRS R
the Group’s financial performance. The risks associated with NEBMBRIENEEINNTE - T~
these financial instruments and the policies applied by the YEYEFESE T BB BB L
Group to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group £ B R AR It & R bR FT ER B Z SR o
currently does not have written risk management policies and NEBRETESGTZEE Z2EMEEIE
guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically BEREIES - Rin - EE B THE
and cooperates closely with key management to analyse and H BFXrEEBABEEEE UK
formulate strategies to manage and monitor financial risks A R /E L DT I &I 5T 18 % BE o
exposures in a timely and effective manner. BT TSR S 2 SR o
36.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 36.1 MKEERBEZER
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets RBEMREOERAEBET
and liabilities recognised at the end of the reporting BEMBGEBZEEBE BN
period are categorised as follows. See note 3.11 T BT AER N A
for explanations on how the category of financial BHARFE 2B - BRHE
instruments affects their subsequent measurement. 3.11 -
() Financial assets (i) HHEE
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEFARMER
WAZ B EE 9,298
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATERAEBRZ
B EE 88,836
Financial assets measured at REHKATTEZ
amortised cost g EE
- Trade and other receivables and  — &% & H fih ElUR
deposits R MiEe 7,537 2,950
- Amount due from non-controlling  — &I JE4E A 25
interest IR 10 10
- Pledged bank deposits — BIRIRERTTIE 5K 92,469 86,062
— Cash and bank balances — IR & MIRTT4 R 26,325 21,866
200,733 209,022
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INANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

ND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
NTINUED)

Categories of financial assets and liabilities

(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Financial liabilities

2z /N
A%/Fm

o W R B R

EoFFF A= —HIFE

36. H/y% Jo\ i B e PR R

(%)
36.1
(ii)

Financial liabilities measured at &4 5K st & 2
amortised cost HiEaE
- Trade and other payables — R EMERIRR
— Amount due to non- —J?éﬁ?ﬂ A

controlling interest I8

— Amount due to a shareholder — JTEH LR R EIE
— Lease liabilities —HE&E
- Bank borrowings (secured) —RITEE(HEMR)

Financial instruments not measured at
fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value include trade and other receivables
and deposits, balances with non-controlling
interests, pledged bank deposits, cash and bank
balances, trade and other payables, amount
due to a shareholder, lease liabilities and bank
borrowings.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying
values of these financial instruments except for
non-current lease liabilities and bank borrowings
approximate their fair values.

For disclosure purpose, the fair values of non-
current lease liabilities and bank borrowings
are not materially different from their carrying
values. The fair value has been determined using
discounted cash flow model and is classified
as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Significant
inputs include expected future cash flows and
discount rate used to reflect the credit risk of the
Group.

(iii)

MBEERERZER(E)

BKaE
2020 2019
—EC-EH —T—NF
HK$000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT
5,292
2 2
15,000 =
18,738 7,374
204,371 205,937
243,356 218,605
WIERAFEFEZ

£@IA
WIHEAFEFENE
MTEARELEEREM

R SRR M ~ BIE
T m e R
MRTER  RERR
TRtk BXEREME
TRRR - A — R BR
RE - HERBERRT
fBE -

ERHEEHME  ZFE
BTACGERBHHEERE
KIRTTEERRIN) 2 BRE
BEEXNHERS

RLEMS - FFREA
ERERRITREZA
¥ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi
RER - RFETIER
Egiﬁliﬁlé/jlbi Eﬂ%
T YESBESAFE
ERE =M BN
BEARRBRAEEE
ERBHRRRERE
RBAER & o
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36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(CONTINUED)

36.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(iv)

Financial instruments measured at fair

value

The fair value of financial assets at FVOCI and
financial assets at FVTPL with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
market prices which is classified as level 1
financial instruments.

There are no level 2 and level 3 financial
instruments during the year.

The following table provides an analysis of
financial instruments carried at fair value by level
of fair value hierarchy:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

36.

SNy

(

BT B A (e

36.1 MBEERAEBEZER (&)

(iv)

BAVEGFEZER
TR

B 75 43 2 AR AR B AR A
TREBREMER S
MR R FEFAREME
A Z M5 EERR
RFEFABRRZMB
BEZRYE  122E
MSREBETE - HOE
REIETHIA -

FRBMEF2EBENES
ELmTH -

TREHIZAFET R
ZERITAZ AT (RIE
NFEERED) -

-  F1E:HREE
RBERERN
152 B (REH

B):

- B2 REBEEX
BEMER(AE
%) S & (B
ERHEDT) TER
ZBA(TBES
1EMEEZH
B): &

—  H3E: AIFRE
AEBERZMSH
BeRBEEN
BEZBAEER
BRZBA) -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. %R B AT ER =
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%8)
(CONTINUED)
36.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 36.1 MIBEEREBEZER(E)
(Continued)
(iv) Financial instruments measured at fair (iv) RAFEFEZER
value (Continued) Iﬂ(ﬁ)
The financial assets measured at fair value in the REB B IEIR R R AL
consolidated statement of financial position are NFEEFEZHBEEE
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: ThEIDBATZAFE
B4
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E E2E E3E et

HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT

As 31 December 2020 R=—Z-ZfF

+=R=+-H
Financial assets at BATEAER
FVTPL AR
Financial assets at BAFET AR
FVOCI 2EBA G
BE
Net fair values FRTE

As 31 December 2019  RA-ZE—AE

+-B=+—~H

Financial assets at BAFERF AR
FVTPL LB EE 88,836 - - 88,836

Financial assets at BAFET AR

FVOCI 2EBA G
BE 9,298 - - 9,298

Net fair values FATE 98,134 = = 08,134
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)
36.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

(Continued)

(iv)

Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Continued)

There have been no transfers between level 1
and level 2 in the reporting period.

The methods and valuation techniques used
for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods.

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL and
financial assets at FVOCI are listed equity
securities denominated in HK$. Fair values have
been determined by reference to their quoted bid
prices at the end of the reporting period.

30.

i)

)
(lréln

=

BT B A 7 R

36.1 MBEERAEBEZER (&)

(iv)

BRAFENEZESR
TA(E)
RIREHFE - F1EHEE
2 Z AW EER o

R BLTFEERNS
% R {18 £ 15 B2 4% A 4R
&R R -

AEB 2 RAFERFA
BacWBEEREZER
FEFAEMZEERA
B EERABED
Bz ETBRAES -
FEDZ2ERBESFR
BERRAM2EAE
MERE °
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. AW R E P K AP EFHE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#4)
(CONTINUED)

36.2 Foreign currency risk 36.2 &R

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group’s exposures to currency risk arise
from its deposits placed in banks, which are primarily
denominated in HK$ and RMB as set out in notes
21 and 22. The Group have no other significant
foreign currency risk due to limited foreign currency
transactions as the Group mainly operate in Hong
Kong with majority of the business transactions being
denominated and settled in HK$.

Summary of exposure

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities, translated into HK$ at the closing rates, are as
follows:

EEMRITER
& MIRITHEER

Pledged bank deposits
Cash and bank balances

SMEERERIEE R T A2 R FE
FARRASREKHEXRZE)
R ) 2 [ B o W A B RE 21
R22FE - NEEZINER
BREZBREREFRRETZ
T RXTEUBEBERARK
AHE - BARAKEEZERE
BIE - KD EERHHNE
BHERGE - BIINEXBHE
R R AR BB EE A E M
EARINERE ©

AREE
BONEEHE Y B EE R A R
Bl 7 SR R 1R
m -

2020 2019
—E-%F —FNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT ok

92,469 86,062
2,383 2,223

94,852 88,285
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30.

o W R B R

4 A

—FFEF A=+ —HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS f

(CONTINUED)

36.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

36. B
(%8)

b S ERHE

—ke
(=]
F|

36.2 S ERR ()

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s result and equity in regard to a 2.5% (2019:
2.5%) appreciation in the foreign currencies against
the Group entities’ functional currencies. The 2.5%
(2019: 2.5%) is the rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s best assessment of the
possible change in foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period has been determined based on the assumed
percentage changes in foreign currency exchange rates
taking place at the beginning of the financial year and
held constant throughout the year.

2.5% (2019: 2.5%) appreciation in

RMB

AREFE2.5%

—_ZT—

NF :2.5%)

A 2.5% (2019: 2.5%) depreciation in the foreign
currencies against the Group entities’ functional
currencies would have the same magnitude on the
Group’s result for the year and equity but of opposite

effect.

BREDW

TEREAANEBMEEREST
INEHEBERNEEEAE
25%( T —NF :25%)2
BREE - 25%(ZF—NF:
25%) AEBEANTRAETEEE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

36.3

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings
arranged in floating interest rates. The Group currently
does not have any interest rate hedging policy.
However, the directors monitor interest rate change
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate change exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s result
and equity (through the impact on floating rate bank
borrowings).

/mg

Increase in basis points (“bp”)
+ 100 bp

E 3 (123138 h0+100E3

A decrease in 100 bp in the interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have the same
magnitude on the Group’s result for the year and equity
but of opposite effect.

A e T B AR M AR
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AT BT

36.3 FXREK

MERBRIDARERTAZA
FEFREREGEDHH X
EPHmREH AR - $$@%
mE 2N EEHmISRAREE
Y AEEAFBMERZ 2
RITIEE - AREREHEL
ﬁﬂ PR o AT BEE
ERMEXZHEN  THER
VEREREPERNEES) -

TRIVRR A B2 BRI
A A R IR A IR ] B
BERT - AEEZRERE
ﬁﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁz

B )HEE) 2 BURE -
Increase in Increase in
loss for loss for

the year and
accumulated
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36.

—EET A= HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

36.4 Equity price risk

Equity price risk relates to the risk that the fair values
of equity securities decrease as a result of changes in
the level of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to change in market
prices of listed equity securities in respect of its
investments in listed equity securities classified as
financial assets at FVOCI (note 16) and financial assets
at FVTPL (note 18).

The directors manage this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and return
profiles and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group is not exposed to
commaodity price risk.

At 31 December 2020, if the quoted market price for
the financial assets at FVOCI had been 10% (2019:
10%) higher/lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s equity will increase/decrease by
approximately HK$445,000 (2019: HK$930,000).

Whereas, if the quoted market price for listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at FVTPL had
been 10% (2019: 10%) higher with all other variables
remain unchanged, the Group’s loss for the year and
accumulated losses would decrease by HK$6,995,000
(2019: HK$8,884,000). A 10% (2019: 10%) lower in the
quoted market price for listed equity securities classified
as financial assets at FVTPL, with all other variables
held constant, would have the same magnitude on the
Group’s result for the year and equity but of opposite
effect.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. BAWEE R E B e E R &
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#8)
(CONTINUED)

36.5 Credit risk 36.5 =ERMK

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group minimises its
exposure to the credit risk by rigorously selecting the
counterparties, performing ongoing credit evaluation
on the financial conditions of its debtors and tightly
monitoring the ageing of the receivables. Follow-
up actions are taken in case of overdue balances. In
particular for granting loans to customers, the directors
will initially assess the background and financial
position of each of the new and existing customers
and will request for collateral when necessary in order
to minimise credit risk. The directors will also review
regularly the repayment pattern of the customers.
Monitoring on credit risk of loans receivable is
performed by the directors on on-going basis.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a simplified approach. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each debtor. The
default risk of the industry and country in which debtors
operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade and other receivables, deposits
and amount due from non-controlling interest, also
including pledged bank deposits and bank balances.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the
financial instruments are their carrying values.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. BARS )RS LA ER =
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#8)

(CONTINUED)

36.5 Credit risk (Continued) 36.5 =E=M(E)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: (i) the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (i) the financial asset is more than 90 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criteria is more appropriate.

The Group measures loss allowance for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix by reference
to past default experience of the debtor and current
market condition in relation to each debtor’s exposure
and time value of money where appropriate. The ECLs
also incorporate forward looking information with
reference to general macroeconomic conditions that
may affect the liability of the debtors to settle the trade
receivables. Trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The Group has assessed that the expected loss rate
was not significant as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.
Accordingly, no loss allowance for trade receivables
was recognised.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to customers that have a good payment record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

36.5 Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of other receivables, deposits and
amount due from non-controlling interest, the Group
considers the background and regularly monitors the
financial condition of the counterparties to assess
the recoverability of the outstanding balances. The
management does not expect any loss allowance from
non-performance by the counterparties and assessed
that the ECLs in respect of these balances were

immaterial at the end of the reporting period.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and cash
and bank balances is limited because majority of the
bank balances are deposited in reputable banks, for
which the Group consider to have low credit risk. There
was no history of default in relation to these financial

institutions.

The credit policy has been followed by the Group since
prior years and is considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a

desirable level.

36.6 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of liquidity
risk, the directors monitor and maintain a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance
the Group’s operations, investment opportunities and
expected expansion. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds generated

from operations and investing activities.

At the end of the reporting period, the maturity profile
of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted cash flows is as follows:
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. BB RS P A EF =
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(CONTINUED)
36.6 Liquidity risk (Continued) 36.6 nEBESLRAMR(E)
Total
contractual Total
On Within In2to  More than undiscounted carrying
demand 1 year 5years 5years  cash flows amount
EHAREE

BEX -Eh ZERF BBEF REREAR  REAH
HK§000  HK§O0D  HKBOOD  HKBO0D  HKBO0D  HKS000

E¥Tr  ARTn  E¥T BBt EETm E¥Tx

At 31 December 2020 R-%-%%
t=B=+-8
Trade and other payables EERAMERER
Amount due to non-controllng  JERTFERRIERUR
interest
Amount dus to a shareholdsr Ef-2REE
Lease liabilties HEaE

Bank borrowings including those /718 & (BE& AR
contain arepayment on demand  EREEKFZ

clause (note) HiTiEE) (W) 195,383 , , 206,267 204,371
210,385 ! ] , 246,120 243,356
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+Zh=1-8
Trade and other payables BE RIS - 5,292 = = 5,202 5,200
Amount due tonon-controling R ERTRIER 2B
interest 2 - - - 2 2
Lease lfabilies HEBR - 4714 3,037 = 7,751 7,374

Bank borrowings including those TR E (BEFAR
contain arepayment on demand  EXERKTZ

clause (note) R E) (W) 196,536 622 2,487 8,393 208,038 205,987
196,538 10,628 5,624 8,393 221,083 218,606
Note:  For bank loans which contain a repayment on demand clause ik : HWRFBHRITAZEBBITE
which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the ZERERBEEBKRZETE
analysis above shows the cash outflow based on the earliest o ERAIEAREA R

BRZ &FHE (M E S H#T
168 2L A R 1 4 8 B SR BB (E IR
BEF)2FREREE

period in which the Group can be required to pay, that is if
the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. BAS A E B N N EEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#44)
(CONTINUED)

36.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table that follows summaries the maturity analysis

36.6 mEBELEK(E)
TRBUMH AZERERIER

of bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in
the loan agreements. The amounts include interest
payments computed using contractual rates. As a
result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity
analysis above. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not consider that it
is probable that the banks will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

ZRITEFEER BRI Z
BEEERXBHZBHBDMN -
ZETHBREANNERGFE
ZHEMK - ALt - ZEFEH
REMBEB D [REK
BEIKFALEAREZSE
R o BEF R AKE 2 B HR
N BEERB/RITIAAIBETT
EHRIBEEERNEENR - &
ERERFRITEFHRER
W E 2 R E RN A HIEE -

Maturity analysis - bank loans subject to repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

WERERRERF < RTESNEECENRE A2 NBEAH

Total
contractual Total
Within In2to More than undiscounted carrying
1 year 5 years 5years cash outflows amount
CEES
—FR “Znf BBLF HReRELH RELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB AR AR BRI AR

31 December 2020 —E-EE+-A=+-H

158,454

31 December 2019 “E-AET-A=1-H 160,020

36,967

40,048

2,084 197,505 195,383

2,499 202,567 196,536
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37.

—EET A= HIFE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(@) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and
benefits for shareholders and other stakeholders;

(b) to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Management regards total equity as capital for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31
December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$322,012,000
(2019: HK$349,370,000), which the management considers
as satisfactory having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the forecast strategic investment
opportunities.

IMPACTS OF COVID-19
The outbreak of COVID-19 in January 2020 has created certain
impact on the business of the Group.

The Group estimated that the degree of COVID-19 impact
would depend on the pandemic preventive measures and the
duration of the pandemic. Given the dynamic circumstance
and uncertainties of COVID-19 situation, the Group will
keep continuous attention on the development of COVID-19
situation and react actively to its impacts on the operation and
financial position of the Group, and in the event that there are
any significant financial impacts, the Company will reflect it in
the Group’s 2021 financial statements.
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BEY RN

Investment Properties BEYE
Percentage
of interest
attributable to
Description Use Nature Gross floor the Group
1 Jizkes HE BEEE AEBEM
ERBEDL
Res-do-chao K Commercial Medium term 349 sq.ft. 100%
San Kin Yip Com. Center, leasehold
No.44,
Avenida de Lopo Sarmento de Carvalho,
EM Macau,
Macau
RFIBEM KB RAASRITEENER UK [BES RHIHE 349F R 100%
P12-07, P12-08, P12-09 and P12-10B Commercial Medium term 8,110 sq.ft. 100%
Landmark, Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao leasehold
NoS 565-605-C,
Rua De Xangai NoS 38-78-B,
Avenida da Amizade NoS 519-597,
Macau
MPIRAKNFEE519-6975% EES hEITEE 8,110F AR 100%
L8%5%38-78-Bik -
R E 4 B35 5 565-605-CHf
RPIE HE5HP12-07 ~ P12-08 » P12-09 %
P12-10B
26 Andar T1/B, One Central Residences, Residential Medium term 1,359 sq.ft. 100%
EM Macau Avenida De Sagres N58, Macau leasehold
RPTADAREN K S B 5858 = 5% B 152618 T1/BRE F= RS 1,359F R 100%
G/F nos. 105-107 Wing Lok Street, Commercial Long term 615 sq.ft. 100%
Sheung Wan, leasehold
and the remaining Portion of Marine Lot
Nos. 135 and 136
FERKEEE105-107503 T B R E135 K BE REHE 615 AR 100%

13650 RER
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BEY XN

Percentage
of interest
attributable to
Description Use Nature Gross floor the Group
1 JizE=S HE EEMEE AEBEEN
EEES L
Flat H, 20/F, Residential Long term 691 sq.ft. 100%
Heng Shan Mansion, leasehold
Kao Shan Terrace,
No. 19 Taikoo Shing Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
ARG ARSI A G INE195 F=E RHAMHE 691 F R 100%
= AaELE20EBHE
Flat B, 10/F, Residential Long term 902 sq.ft. 100%
Kai Tien Mansion, leasehold
Horizon Gardens,
No. 17 Taikoo Wan Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
eV N SR F=E REHE 902F 7 IR 100%
BRIEERAE10EBE
Flat F, 23/F, Residential Long term 675 sq.ft. 100%
Loong Shan Mansion, leasehold
Kao Shan Terrace,
No. 21 Taikoo Shing Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
ERB BB E A R IE215% F=E REIAE 675F AR 100%

SILABEILE23EFE
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